
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	

Entry 1 School Information and Cover Page 

(New schools that were not open for instruction for 

the 2018-19 school year are not required to complete 

or submit an annual report this year). 
Created: 07/20/2019 • Last updated: 07/27/2019 

Please be advised that you will need to complete this cover page (including signatures) before all of the 

other tasks assigned to you by your authorizer are visible on your task page. While completing this cover 
page task, please ensure that you select the correct authorizer (as of June 30, 2019) or you may not be 

assigned the correct tasks. 

BASIC INFORMATION 

a. SCHOOL NAME SISULU WALKER CHARTER SCHOOL OF HARLEM 

(Select name from the drop down menu) 

a1. Popular School Name (No response) 
(Optional) 

b. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of SUNY Authorized Charter School 
June 30th, 2019) 

Please select the correct authorizer as of 
June 30, 2019 or you may not be 

assigned the correct tasks. 

c. DISTRICT / CSD OF LOCATION NYC CSD 3 

d. DATE OF INITIAL CHARTER 01/1999 

e. DATE FIRST OPENED FOR 09/1999 

INSTRUCTION 

h. SCHOOL WEB ADDRESS (URL) http://www.sisuluwalker.org 
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i. TOTAL MAX APPROVED 218 

ENROLLMENT FOR THE 2018-19 

SCHOOL YEAR (exclude Pre-K 

program enrollment) 

j. TOTAL STUDENT ENROLLMENT 218 

ON JUNE 30, 2019 (exclude Pre-K 

program enrollment) 

k. GRADES SERVED IN SCHOOL YEAR 2018-19 (does not include Pre-K program 

students) 
Check all that apply 

Grades Served K, 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 

l1. DOES THE SCHOOL CONTRACT No 

WITH A CHARTER OR 

EDUCATIONAL MANAGEMENT 

ORGANIZATION? 

FACILITIES INFORMATION 

m. FACILITIES 

Does the school maintain or operate multiple sites? 

No, just one site. 

School Site 1 (Primary) 
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m1. SCHOOL SITES 

Please provide the following information for site 1. 

Physical Address 

125 West 115th 
Street, Site 1 New York, NY 
10026 

Phone Number 

212 663 8216 

etc.) 

NYC CSD 3 K 5 

m1a. Please provide the contact information for Site 1. 

Name Work Phone 

School 
Leader Michelle K. Haynes 

Operati
onal Shamik L. Mitchell 
Leader 

Complia 
nce Shamik L. Mitchell 
Contact 

Complai 
nt 
Contact 

Michelle K. Haynes 

DASA 
Coordin Dawn Holness 
ator 

Phone 
Contact 
for After 
Hours 

Michelle K. Haynes 

Emerge
ncies 

District/CSD Grades Served Receives Rental 
at Site (K 5, 6 9, Assistance for 

Alternate Phone 

Which Grades (If
yes, enter the
appropriate
grades. If no,
enter No). 

No 

Email Address 

m1b. Is site 1 in public (co- Private Space 

located) space or in private 

space? 
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p. Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board 

President) below attest that all of the information contained herein is truthful and 

accurate and that this charter school is in compliance with all aspects of its charter, 
and with all pertinent Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and rules. We 

understand that if any information in any part of this report is found to have been 

deliberately misrepresented, that will constitute grounds for the revocation of our 

charter. Check YES if you agree and then use the mouse on your PC or the stylist on 

your mobile device to sign your name). 

Yes 

Signature, Head of Charter School 

Signature, President of the Board of Trustees 

Date 2019/07/31 

Thank you. 
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Entry 2 NYS School Report Card Link 
Last updated: 07/20/2019 

SISULU-WALKER CHARTER SCHOOL OF HARLEM 

1. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of 
June 30th, 2019) 

(For technical reasons, please re select 
authorizer name from the drop down 

menu). 

2. NEW YORK STATE REPORT 

CARD 

Provide a direct URL or web link 

to the most recent New York 

State School Report Card for the 

charter school (See 

https://reportcards.nysed.gov/). 

(Charter schools completing year 
one will not yet have a School 
Report Card or link to one. Please 

type "URL is not available" in the 

space provided.) 

SUNY Authorized Charter School 

https://data.nysed.gov/profile.php?instid=800000047050 
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Sisulu-Walker Charter School 
of Harlem 

2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 
PROGRESS REPORT 

Submitted to the SUNY Charter Schools Institute on: 

September 23, 2019 

By:Michelle Haynes 

125 West 115th Street 
New York, New York 10026 
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INTRODUCTION 

Michelle Haynes, Principal, prepared this 2017-18 Accountability Progress Report on behalf of the 
school’s board of trustees: 

Trustee’s Name Board Position 
Martez Moore Chair 

Minnie Goka Vice Chair 

Jeremy Harris Trustee 
Monique Ware Trustee 
Rita Hanes Trustee 
Erika Ewing Trustee 
Joseph Drayton Trustee 

Michelle Haynes has served as the principal since 2011. 
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MATHEMATICS 

Established in 1999, The Sisulu-Walker Charter School of Harlem, New York State's first charter 
school, is named for two great human rights leaders, Walter Sisulu and Dr. Wyatt Tee Walker, and 
their wives. Walter Sisulu, former Secretary General of the African National Congress, worked 
closely with Nelson Mandela and was at the forefront of the struggle against South African apartheid 
for over five decades. Dr. Wyatt Tee Walker, a renowned pastor, author, lecturer and advocate for 
human rights, served as the Chief of Staff to Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. during critically important 
years of the American Civil Rights Movement. 

The mission of the school is to prepare K-5 students living in and around Central Harlem for 
matriculation to outstanding public, private and parochial middle and high schools by nurturing their 
intellectual, emotional, artistic and social development. The school is accomplishing this by offering 
a rigorous and challenging academic curricula taught by a highly prepared and committed cadre of 
professional educators. Beginning in kindergarten, we prepare our students for college and a lifetime 
of achievement, honor and service. Sisulu-Walker is achieving this in a small and supportive learning 
environment that sets high expectations for all of our students and encourages strong parental and 
community involvement. 

School Enrollment by Grade Level and School Year 
School 
Year K 1 2 3 4 5 Total 

2014-15 27 30 54 52 43 23 229 

2015-16 27 29 30 57 53 41 237 

2016-17 39 32 26 32 54 42 225 

2017-18 46 37 35 26 28 48 220 

2018-19 30 52 40 40 29 29 220 

GOAL 1: ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS 

Goal 1: English Language Arts 
All students at the school will become proficient in reading and writing of the English language 

BACKGROUND 
At SWCSH, our mantra is “Literacy is Everything and Everywhere.” We believe that children learn 
to read and write by reading and writing daily for information and enjoyment. Students are required 
to read books on or above their independent reading level across content areas and demonstrate 
mastery of all content through writing. Writing is embedded across the curriculum through reading, 
social studies, science and mathematics. As a result, literacy is taught across the curriculum using a 
comprehensive balanced literacy approach. Balanced Literacy is an all-inclusive framework that 
encompasses all of the research-based best practices for literacy instruction as outlined by the 
National Reading Panel (2000). This literacy model comprises two distinct elements. Students learn 
to read during the traditional literacy block and read to learn during the social studies and science 
blocks. Additionally, opportunities for reading or being read to are integrated into the mathematics 
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MATHEMATICS 

block. The gradual release method is employed to ensure student mastery of concepts as well as a 
workshop model. The Literacy Block is 165 minutes. The block is organized into three forty-five 
minute periods and one thirty-minute period. The chart below illustrates the breakdown of each block 
by grade level. 

Block K-2 3-5 

ELA I Vocabulary/Read-aloud Guided Reading 

ELA II Word Work/Writing Vocabulary/Novel 

ELA III Guided Reading Text Analysis/Writing 

ELA IV Writing Writing 

Writing is anchored in the reading process as students write about what they read and use mentor 
texts that are read to write in a variety of genres. Opportunities for independent reading and writing 
are incorporated in the literacy framework during the guided reading/ small group instructional 
period; when students are not working with a teacher, they engage in independent reading and 
writing. The framework for instruction for social studies and science instruction includes 
opportunities for students to develop and refine questioning skills, increase content vocabulary and 
read and respond to nonfiction texts. 

The literacy curriculum is organized into thematic units that include wide reading of prose and poetry 
that encompasses reading during the traditional literacy period as well as during the social studies 
and science blocks. Thematic units include an emphasis on balancing fiction and nonfiction texts. All 
unit plans are standards based and aligned to the New York State Next Generation Standards. 

Goal 1: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of all tested students enrolled in at least their second year will perform at or 
above proficiency on the New York State English language arts examination for grades 3-8. 

METHOD 
The school administered the New York State Testing Program English language arts (“ELA”) 
assessment to students in 3rd through 5th grade in April 2019. Each student’s raw score has been 
converted to a grade-specific scaled score and a performance level. 

The table below summarizes participation information for this year’s test administration. The table 
indicates total enrollment and total number of students tested. It also provides a detailed 
breakdown of those students excluded from the exam. Note that this table includes all students 
according to grade level, even if they have not enrolled in at least their second year (defined as 
enrolled by BEDS day of the previous school year). 

2018-19 State English Language Arts Exam 
Number of Students Tested and Not Tested 

Grade Not Tested1 

1 Students exempted from this exam according to their Individualized Education Program (IEP), because of English Language 
Learners (ELL) status, or absence for at least some part of the exam. 
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MATHEMATICS 

Total 
Tested IEP ELL Absent Refused Total 

Enrolled 
3 31 0 0 7 0 38 
4 21 0 0 5 0 26 
5 25 0 0 4 0 29 
All 77 0 0 16 0 93 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
Brief narrative highlighting results in the data table below that directly addresses the measure, i.e. 
the overall percent of students in at least their second year achieving at proficiency. Narrative 
explicitly stating whether the school met the measure and discussing by how much the school fell 
short of or exceeded the measure, as well as notable performance in specific grades and 
populations. Also, use this section to explain the results in the context of the school program, 
attributing the results to effective practices or problem areas. 

The following table presents the English Language Arts test results for all third through fifth grade 
students and for those third through fifth grade students enrolled in at least their second year at 
Sisulu-Walker. Overall, 64.9% of students, and 68.3% enrolled in at least their second year 
enrolled at Sisulu-Walker, achieved proficiency on the 2018-19 English language arts exam. 
In the 2018-19 school year, Sisulu-Walker did not meet the absolute measure for English language 
arts proficiency. Overall, 64.9% of the entire school’s third through fifth grade students tested at a 
proficient level. 68.3% of third through fifth grade students in at least their second year at the 
school performed at a proficient level. The school was 10.1 percentage points below its stated goal 
of 75% proficiency on the ELA exam. 

Although Sisulu-Walker’s unit plans are aligned to the Common Core State Standards, additional 
opportunities for students to engage in meaningful opportunities to master the standards are 
needed. In addition, allocating more time for content specific reading and explicit instruction in 
the organizational patterns and craft specific to nonfiction reading is necessary. Students also need 
additional opportunities to demonstrate their understanding of skills and concepts associated with 
each standard via writing. 

Sisulu-Walker’s guided reading program began to address the needs of students at their 
instructional levels, which were well below the rigorous ranges of the Common Core. Our novel 
program required students to read more challenging texts with the support of teachers. However, 
the number of novels that are covered during the academic year must increase in order to give 
students the practice needed to transfer what they are taught in independent reading situations. In 
addition, content literacy instruction must require students to explicitly apply reading 
comprehension skills and strategies to science and social studies content- the dual focus most 
emphasize the application of what students learn during the traditional literacy block. 

Performance on 2018-19 State English Language Arts Exam 
By All Students and Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second Year 

Grades All Students Enrolled in at least their 
Second Year 
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MATHEMATICS 

Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested 

Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested 

3 51.6% 31 54.2% 24 
4 90.5% 21 94.1% 17 
5 60.0% 25 63.6% 22 
All 64.9% 77 68.3% 63 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
Narrative discussing year-to-year trends during the current Accountability Period2. This discussion 
shows how the school is making progress towards, or maintaining, a high level of performance. The 
school can use a supplemental table for this section on performance disaggregated by number of 
years in the school. 

Also, additional evidence may include other valid and reliable assessment results that demonstrate 
the effectiveness of the school’s instructional program 

From the 2016-17 school year to the 2018-19 school year, Sisulu-Walker showed a significant 
overall improvement in the percentage of students achieving proficiency on the English language 
arts exams. Overall, the percentage of students testing at a proficient level increased 22.3 
percentage points from the 2016-17 school year and 20.5 percentage points from the 2017-18 
school year. 
Over the last three school years, the school showed both longitudinal and latitudinal growth. For 
example, in the 2016-17 school year, 40% of 3rd grade students enrolled at the school for at least 
two years achieved proficiency on the English language arts exam. When that same group of 
students took the English language arts exam as 5th grade students in the 2018-19 school year, 
63.6% achieved proficiency. The most notable latitudinal improvements occurred at the 4th and 5th 
grades, where the percentage of students testing at a proficient level increased nearly 43 and over 
23 percentage points respectively. 

ELA Performance by Grade Level and Year 

Grade 

Percent of Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second Year 
Achieving Proficiency 

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 

Percent Number 
Tested Percent Number 

Tested Percent Number 
Tested 

3 40.0% 20 77.0% 13 54.2% 24 
4 51.3% 39 86.7% 15 94.1% 17 
5 40.0% 35 24.4% 41 63.6% 22 
All 44.7% 94 47.8% 69 68.3% 63 

Goal 1: Absolute Measure 

2 A school’s Accountability Period includes the final year of the previous charter term through the penultimate year of the 
current charter term. For schools in their initial charter, the Accountability Period includes the first year of operation through 
the fourth year of the charter term. 

Sisulu-Walker Charter School of Harlem 2017-18 Accountability Plan Progress Report Page 5 of 32 



 

             

 
       

 

 
 

  
     

           
    

  

         

   
  

      
       

              
    

        
        

 
   

  
  

       
         

      
      
            
              
              
            

 
 
 

  

 

 

  
   

 
              

            

MATHEMATICS 

Each year, the school’s aggregate Performance Index (“PI”) on the State English language arts exam 
will meet that year’s state Measure of Interim Progress (“MIP”) set forth in the state’s ESSA 
accountability system. 

METHOD 
In New York State, ESSA school performance goals are met by showing that an absolute proportion 
of a school's students who have taken the English language arts test have scored at the partially 
proficient, or proficient and advanced performance levels (Levels 2 or 3 & 4). The percentage of 
students at each of these three levels is used to calculate a PI and determine if the school has met 
the MIP set each year by the state’s ESSA accountability system. To achieve this measure, all tested 
students must have a PI value that equals or exceeds the state’s 2018-19 English language arts MIP 
for all students of 105. The PI is the sum of the percent of students in all tested grades combined 
scoring at Level 2, plus two times the percent of students scoring at Level 3, plus two-and-a-half 
times the percent of students scoring at Level 4. Thus, the highest possible PI is 250. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
Brief narrative highlighting results in the data tables that directly addresses the measure by 
comparing the PI to this year’s MIP. Narrative explicitly stating whether the school met the measure 
and discussing by how much the school fell short of or exceeded the measure, as well as notable 
performance in specific grades and populations. Also, use this section to explain the results in the 
context of the school program, attributing the results to effective practices or problem areas. 

Sisulu-Walker met this measure, achieving an aggregate PLI score of 177 on the English language 
arts exam in the 2018-19 school year. Sisulu-Walker exceeded the state’s 2018-19 English 
language arts MIP goal of 105 by 72 percentage points. 

English Language Arts 2018-19 Performance Index 
Number in 
Cohort 

Percent of Students at Each Performance Level 
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 4 

3 32 35 30 

PI = 32 + 35 + 30 = 97 
35 + 30 = 65 

+ (.5)*30 = 15 
PI = 177 

Goal 1: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of all tested students who are enrolled in at least their second year and 
performing at proficiency on the state English language arts exam will be greater than that of all 
students in the same tested grades in the school district of comparison. 

METHOD 
A school compares tested students enrolled in at least their second year to all tested students in the 
public school district of comparison. Comparisons are between the results for each grade in which 
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MATHEMATICS 

the school had tested students in at least their second year at the school and the total result for all 
students at the corresponding grades in the school district.3 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
Brief narrative highlighting results in the data table that directly addresses the measure, e.g. the 
aggregate charter school performance compared to the aggregate district performance in the same 
tested grades. Narrative explicitly stating whether or not the school met the measure, i.e., whether 
the charter school fell short of, equaled or exceed the aggregate district performance and by how 
much. In addition the evaluation may also include a discussion of specific grade levels’ comparative 
performance. 

The chart below shows the results of this year’s assessment of students who were enrolled in at 
least their second year at Sisulu-Walker as compared to all tested students in the surrounding public 
school district, Community School District 5, on the state English Language Arts exam. Sisulu-
Walker’s aggregate percentage of students at proficiency was 68.3%, while the local district’s 
average was 64.6%. 
Sisulu-Walker met this measure. The school’s aggregate percentage of students performing at a 
proficient level on the English language arts exam was nearly 4 percentage points above Community 
School District 3. Further, Sisulu-Walker had a higher percentage of students performing at a proficient 
level than Community School District 3 at 4th and 5th grade on the 2018-19 English language arts exam. 

2018-19 State English Language Arts Exam 
Charter School and District Performance by Grade Level 

Grade 

Percent of Students at or Above Proficiency 
Charter School Students 

In At Least 2nd Year All District Students 

Percent Number 
Tested Percent Number 

Tested 
3 54.2% 24 65.9% 1349 
4 94.1% 17 70.8% 1221 
5 63.6% 22 57.2% 1281 
All 68.3% 63 64.6% 3851 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
Narrative provides a discussion of the charter school’s performance in comparison to the local 
district in previous years. In addition, the school can use a supplemental table for this section on a 
comparison of the charter school to selected local schools. The table shell appears on page 31 in 
the Appendix. 

Also, additional evidence may include demographic differences between the school and the district 
as well as compelling reasons for comparing the school to a subset of schools within the district. 

3 Schools can acquire these data when the New York State Education Department releases its database containing grade level 
ELA and math test results for all schools and districts statewide. The NYSED announces the release of the data on its News 
Release webpage. 
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MATHEMATICS 

As shown through the chart below, Sisulu-Walker has had a higher percentage of students performing 
at a proficient level on the state English Language Arts exam in the 2016-17 school year, when their 
comparator district was Community School District 5, the district from which the majority of Sisulu-
Walker students reside. Indeed, the gap between Sisulu-Walker and Community School District 5 was 
significant: nearly 22 percentage points in the 2016-17 school year. When the school’s comparison 
district was changed to also include Community School District 3 in the 2017-18 school year, Sisulu-
Walker had a lower percentage of students achieving proficiency than the district. However, in the 
2018-19 school year, Sisulu-Walker had a higher percentage of students performing at a proficient 
level on the state English Language Arts exam than the district. Indeed, Sisulu-Walker outperformed 
the district on the 2018-19 English language arts exam by nearly 4 percentage points. Impressively, 
from the 2017-18 school year to the 2018-19 school year, the percentage of Sisulu-Walker students 
achieving proficiency on English language arts exam increased by 20.5 percentage points. During this 
same time, the district increased by less than one percentage point. 

English Language Arts Performance of Charter School and Local District 
by Grade Level and School Year 

Grade 

Percent of Students Enrolled in at Least their Second Year Scoring at or 
Above Proficiency Compared to District Students 

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 
Charter 
School District Charter 

School District Charter 
School District 

3 40.0% 23.4% 77.0% 67% 54.2% 65.9% 
4 51.3% 24.2% 86.7% 67% 94.1% 70.8% 
5 40.0% 20.8% 24.4% 58% 63.6% 57.2% 
All 44.7% 22.9% 47.8% 64.0% 68.3% 64.6% 

Goal 1: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the school will exceed its predicted level of performance on the state English language 
arts exam by an effect size of 0.3 or above (performing higher than expected to a meaningful 
degree) according to a regression analysis controlling for economically disadvantaged students 
among all public schools in New York State. 

METHOD 
The SUNY Charter Schools Institute (“Institute”) conducts a comparative performance analysis, 
which compares the school’s performance to that of demographically similar public schools 
statewide. The Institute uses a regression analysis to control for the percentage of economically 
disadvantaged students among all public schools in New York State. The Institute compares the 
school’s actual performance to the predicted performance of public schools with a similar 
concentration of economically disadvantaged students. The difference between the school’s actual 
and predicted performance, relative to other schools with similar economically disadvantaged 
statistics, produces an Effect Size. An Effect Size of 0.3, or performing higher than expected to a 
meaningful degree, is the requirement for achieving this measure. 

Given the timing of the state’s release of economically disadvantaged data and the demands of the 
data analysis, the 2018-19 analysis is not yet available. This report contains 2017-18 results, the 
most recent Comparative Performance Analysis available. 
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RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

MATHEMATICS 

Provide a brief narrative highlighting 2017-18 results in the data table that directly addresses the 
critical data: overall Effect Size. In addition, the discussion may also include highlighting individual 
grade levels and their respective Effect Sizes. Narrative explicitly stating whether the school met 
the measure; i.e. whether the school’s aggregate Effect Size exceeded 0.3 and, if not, whether it 
was at least a positive Effect Size. In addition, the narrative may also include specific grade levels’ 
comparative performance. 

Sisulu-Walker’s school wide effect size was 0.98. 

Sisulu-Walker’s aggregate Effect Size exceeded its goal of 0.3. The Effect Size at each grade level 
also far exceeded the .68 goal. 

2017-18 English Language Arts Comparative Performance by Grade Level 

Grade 
Percent 

Economically 
Disadvantaged 

Number 
Tested 

Percent of Students 
at Levels 3&4 

Difference 
between Actual 
and Predicted 

Effect 
Size 

Actual Predicted 
3 84.6 21 66.7 40.4 26.3 1.39 
4 92.9 22 81.8 34.5 47.3 2.60 
5 89.6 45 24.4 24.5 0.0 0.00 
All 89.2 88 48.9 30.8 18.1 0.98 

School’s Overall Comparative Performance: 

Higher than expected to large degree 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
Narrative provides a discussion of current and past performance of this comparative measure, 
including trends over time. 

The school’s effect size has improved significantly from the 2015-16 school year. During this time, at 
the school has severed a larger population of economically disadvantaged students. 

English Language Arts Comparative Performance by School Year 

School 
Year Grades 

Percent 
Economically 
Disadvantaged 

Number 
Tested Actual Predicted Effect 

Size 

2015-16 3-5 78.2 139 32.6 30.4 0.15 
2016-17 3-5 86.4 117 42.9 26.7 0.94 
2017-18 3-5 89.2 88 48.9 30.8 0.98 

Goal 1: Growth Measure4 

4 See Guidelines for Creating a SUNY Accountability Plan for an explanation. 
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MATHEMATICS 

Provide a brief narrative highlighting 2017-18 results - shown in the data table below - that directly 
addresses the critical data: the school’s mean growth percentile. In addition, the discussion may 
also include highlighting individual grade levels and their respective percentiles. Narrative explicitly 
stating whether the school met the measure; i.e. whether the school’s overall mean growth 
percentile is greater than the state median of the 50th percentile. In addition, the narrative may 
also include discussion of specific grade-level results. 

Each year, under the state’s Growth Model, the school’s mean unadjusted growth percentile in 
English language arts for all tested students in grades 4-8 will be above the target of 50. 

METHOD 
This measure examines the change in performance of the same group of students from one year to 
the next and the progress they are making in comparison to other students with the same score in 
the previous year. The analysis only includes students who took the state exam in 2017-18 and also 
have a state exam score from 2016-17 including students who were retained in the same grade. 
Students with the same 2016-17 score are ranked by their 2017-18 score and assigned a percentile 
based on their relative growth in performance (student growth percentile). Students’ growth 
percentiles are aggregated school-wide to yield a school’s mean growth percentile. In order for a 
school to perform above the target for this measure, it must have a mean growth percentile greater 
than 50. 

Given the timing of the state’s release of Growth Model data, the 2018-19 analysis is not yet 
available. This report contains 2017-18 results, the most recent Growth Model data available.5 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Sisulu-Walker’s ELA mean growth percentile in the 2017-18 school year was 51.1, above the 
statewide median. 
Sisulu-Walker’s overall mean growth percentile was above the statewide average and the 
school’s 4th grade also exceeded the statewide targeted mean growth percentile. 

2017-18 English Language Arts Mean Growth Percentile by Grade Level 

Grade Mean Growth Percentile 
School Target 

4 62.3 50.0 
5 45.4 50.0 
All 51.1 50.0 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
Narrative provides a discussion of current and past performance in comparison to the statewide 
average. 

In each of the last three years, Sisulu-Walker’s mean growth percentile has exceeded the state-wide 
target. The school’s 4th grade continues to vastly exceed the state-wide target, scoring 11 and 12.3 
points above the target in the 2016-17 and 2017-18 school years, respectively. 

5 Schools can acquire these data from the NYSED’s Business Portal: portal.nysed.gov. 
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MATHEMATICS 

English Language Arts Mean Growth Percentile by Grade Level and School Year 

Grade 
Mean Growth Percentile 

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 Target 
4 52.2 61.0 62.3 50.0 
5 49.0 39.2 45.4 50.0 

All 50.8 50.6 51.1 50.0 

SUMMARY OF THE ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS GOAL 
Present a narrative providing an overview of which measures the school achieved, as well as an 
overall discussion of its attainment of this Accountability Plan goal. 

Sisulu-Walker achieved one absolute goal as well as both comparative goals and its growth goal. 

Type Measure Outcome 

Absolute 
Each year, 75 percent of all tested students who are enrolled in at least 
their second year will perform at proficiency on the New York State English 
language arts exam for grades 3-8. 

Not Met 

Absolute 
Each year, the school’s aggregate PI on the state’s English language arts 
exam will meet that year’s state MIP as set forth in the state’s ESSA 
accountability system. 

Met 

Comparative 

Each year, the percent of all tested students who are enrolled in at least 
their second year and performing at proficiency on the state English 
language arts exam will be greater than that of students in the same tested 
grades in the school district of comparison. 

Met 

Comparative 

Each year, the school will exceed its predicted level of performance on the 
state English language arts exam by an effect size of 0.3 or above 
(performing higher than expected to a meaningful degree) according to a 
regression analysis controlling for economically disadvantaged students 
among all public schools in New York State. (Using 2017-18 results.) 

Met 

Growth 
Each year, under the state’s Growth Model the school’s mean unadjusted 
growth percentile in English language arts for all tested students in grades 
4-8 will be above the target of 50. (Using 2017-18 results.) 

MEt 

ACTION PLAN 
Curriculum 

• A literary coach developed a Reading Comprehension Strategy Guide that provides teachers 
with tools to provide explicit strategy instruction for comprehension strategies. The guide 
defines each strategy, provides the implications for instruction, and includes a mini-lesson for 
each strategy as well as additional activities to reinforce each strategy. Teachers worked during 
the spring and summer to developed a comprehensive reading comprehension manual for 
fiction using the state standards and previously released test questions as a guide. 

• A nonfiction unit plan was developed to ensure that students are reading equal amounts of 
fiction and nonfiction during the guided reading period and instruction is explicitly aligned to 
the demands of reading different nonfiction text structures. 

• SWSCH began the process of revising its curriculum across all subject areas in the late spring 
of 2015 to include more opportunities for reading and writing across the curriculum. This work 
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MATHEMATICS 

continued during our Summer Curriculum Institute during the first two weeks of August and 
during Pre-Service for the 2018-19. Most notably, the fifth grade literacy units have been 
updated significantly due to underperformance by the grade level. 

• Lesson plans were developed and refined to reflect greater alignment to the standards. Rubrics 
and checklists to aid students during the writing process were developed using resources from 
Engage New York as a guide. 

• New frameworks for nonfiction reading in the content areas were developed. The increased 
emphasis on preparing students for college and career readiness demands that student be 
proficient in acquiring information from nonfiction text. The weekly frameworks will ensure 
that students have equal exposure to fiction and nonfiction texts. 

• Social Studies unit plans were revised and realigned to the standards to include additional 
standards-based learning outcomes. 

• Additional nonfiction texts were purchased to supplement the traditional literacy block as well 
as to enhance the social studies and science blocks. We also increased the number of novels 
students will read this year and paired these texts with nonfiction texts for paired reading, 
analysis and writing. 

• Students in grades 3-5 are required to read assigned texts for homework and complete short 
and extended responses aligned to released test questions to increase accountability for 
independent reading at home and deepen and increase opportunities for textual analysis. 

Instruction 

• Teachers will use the Reading Comprehension Strategy Guide to provide students with explicit 
strategy instruction during the guided reading period each day 

• An intervention teacher will be assigned to each class in grades 3-5. The intervention teacher 
assigned to each class will work closely with the lead teacher to provide strategic intervention 
during the guided reading period based on the results of our internal assessments (6-week and 
Fountas and Pinnell assessments). 

• In an effort to increase student exposure to nonfiction texts, the reading and writing have been 
embedded into the framework for instruction for social studies and science. The first six weeks 
of guided reading instruction will include explicit instruction on text features and 
organizational patterns as well as point of view, author purpose and main idea/ details for 
nonfiction texts. 

• 45 minutes per day will be devoted to text analysis. 15 minutes will be devoted to evaluating 
short and extended responses from the homework novel program using NYS rubrics. The 
additional 30 minutes will be allocated to analyzing texts from a variety of genres using a 
combination of multiple-choice and response writing. 

• We have added a thirty-minute writing period to the literacy block in order to allocate more 
time for explicit writing instruction. Students will be writing across the curriculum during this 
time. 

• Students will use the MobyMax program daily for additional literacy practice. 
• To address the vocabulary gap and the standards related to vocabulary acquisition, students 

will receive explicit instruction in five Tier II words per week. This will include teaching 
students’ one synonym and one antonym for each word. Vocabulary instruction will include 
teaching students to use context clues to determine the meaning of unknown words and phrases 
in texts. Tier III words will be addressed using a weekly vocabulary inventory. Teachers will 
use linguistic (questions, reasons, examples etc.) and nonlinguistic (pictures, gestures and 
graphic organizers) to reinforce tier II and III words. 

• During the academic year, teachers will develop questions for nonfiction articles aligned to the 
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MATHEMATICS 

standards and questions published by Engaged New York. We will continue developing our 
question and passage bank during the school year. The PLAR-Q (Preview the Text, Label the 
Questions, Annotate the Text, Reread the Passage and Answer the Question) will be reinforced 
at the beginning of the school year to ensure that students develop stamina and test 
sophistication. 

• Homework will include assigned reading of novels and nonfiction articles. Students will 
complete textual analysis tasks nightly. 

Assessment 

• SWCS has discontinued use of literacy assessments generated by Victory Education Partners. 
We now employ Rally assessments for interim assessments and unit-based assessments. In 
addition, we are integrating previously release questions into the exams. 

• We increased the number of interim assessments students will take during the academic year 
from three to four. Assessments will be administered every six weeks. Students will receive a 
bi-weekly literacy assessment to ensure that the period devoted to text analysis is data-driven 
and we respond to gaps in student understanding earlier. 

• Teachers will use assessment data to create action plans for cohorts of students. Students will 
be divided into the following categories: 0-70%-Intensive Intervention, 71-85%-Strategic 
Intervention and 86-100%-Benchmark. Action plans will consist of whole group intervention 
strategies and targeted small group support. Deficits will be addressed during the guided 
reading period and the whole class novel period. 

• As we continue to develop our PLAR-Q question bank, teachers will develop questions aligned 
to skills/concepts identified as deficits on interim assessments. 

• We will continue to use the Fountas and Pinnell Benchmark System to determine the 
instructional and independent reading levels of students. Students will read leveled books 
during the guided reading period and independent reading period. However, we will align our 
questions to the questions on our interim assessments to create informal opportunities for 
assessment. 

• Rubrics and checklist for writing tasks emphasize using textual evidence to justify claims and 
support responses. In all subjects, student writing will be assessed to ensure that all responses 
are rooted in text. 

Professional Development 
• We have added an Assistant Principal with a strong literacy background to our administrative 

team to provide ongoing instructional support to teachers. 
• The Summer Curriculum Institute included one-to-one coaching sessions with teachers to 

revise curriculum maps and develop lesson plans. 
• Pre-Service included additional opportunities for unit and lesson planning and workshops on 

using poetry to reinforce comprehension skills and strategies, explicit vocabulary instruction 
and using alternate modes of practice to increase student engagement (songs, games, 
movement and art). 

• Monthly half-day workshops will reinforce strategies introduced during Pre-Service as well as 
include opportunities for vertical and horizontal planning. 

• We will host professional development workshops on Saturdays and during holiday breaks. 
The emphasis of the sessions will be on developing action plans and planning learning 
experiences to close instructional gaps. 
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MATHEMATICS 

GOAL 2: MATHEMATICS 

Goal 2: Mathematics 
All students at the school will demonstrate competency in the understanding and application of 
mathematics computation and problem solving 

BACKGROUND 
At Sisulu-Walker, we believe that MATH IS ALL AROUNDUS! In this, we define that math involves 
abstraction, logical reasoning, counting, calculation, measurement, and systematically studying shapes 
and motions of physical objects. Math is an essential tool in many fields including science, engineering, 
medicine and social science. As a result, we apply math in daily life through numeration (counting, 
calculating, estimating), examination, and analysis of patterns, numbers, space, quantities, shapes, etc. 

The math curriculum is organized into thematic units. Math instruction is composed of the following 
components to ensure content/skill development, investigation/manipulative-based methodologies, 
and incorporation of data to drive student achievement: 

• QQ/Do Now 
o Quick Questions are data driven spiraled review questions and/or activities. This can 

include daily routines in grades K – 1 (calendar, counting, attendance, class survey) 
and standards-based questioning from what students have demonstrated mastery of. 

• Hook 
o The lesson hook is the explanation or example of real world relevancy, which brings 

students to be engaged in the content and brings the content to life. 
• Direct Instruction/Modeling 

o The modeling component shows students the strategy/process utilized to problem 
solve. Students should be taught and then practice a variety of strategies, then 
ultimately choose the best strategy for them. 

• Guided Instruction 
o Guided instruction, as with the gradual release methodology of instruction, allows 

students to practice the daily skill with direction from the teacher through directing the 
teacher (“puppeteering”), responding to teacher questions, sharing and discussing with 
classmates. 

• Independent Practice 
o Students practice a series of scaffolding questions related to the skill to ensure that 

application of the skill is developed in accordance to Bloom’s Taxonomy of Higher 
Order Thinking. 

• Checks for Understanding 
o The teacher incorporates various methodologies to collect data on student progress of 

understanding and learning of the day’s lesson objective through use of whiteboards 
for students to show what they know, a sign-language system, turn and talks, partner 
talks, and teacher questioning. 

• Other Cumulative Review/Centers 
o Centers are designed to develop the application of the day’s skill in a variety of other 

contexts: word problems, real life scenarios, and remediation/differentiation. Students 
should work through various centers in small groups to collaborate and get small group 
instructional support. 
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MATHEMATICS 

• Lesson Closing 

Teachers must close the loop with students to ensure students have an opportunity to articulate what 
they’ve understood/learned from the day’s instruction. 

Goal 2: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of all tested students enrolled in at least their second year will perform at 
proficiency on the New York State mathematics examination for grades 3-8. 

METHOD 
The school administered the New York State Testing Program mathematics assessment to students 
in 3rd through 5th grade in April 2019. Each student’s raw score has been converted to a grade-
specific scaled score and a performance level. 

The table below summarizes participation information for this year’s test administration. The table 
indicates total enrollment and total number of students tested. It also provides a detailed 
breakdown of those students excluded from the exam. Note that this table includes all students 
according to grade level, even if they have not enrolled in at least their second year. 

2018-19 State Mathematics Exam 
Number of Students Tested and Not Tested 

Grade Total 
Tested 

Not Tested6 Total 
Enrolled IEP ELL Absent Refused 

3 31 0 0 7 0 38 
4 21 0 0 5 0 26 
5 25 0 0 4 0 29 
All 77 0 0 16 0 93 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
The following table presents the mathematics test results for all third through fifth grade students 
and for those third through fifth grade students enrolled in at least their second year at Sisulu-
Walker. Overall, 75.3% of the students who took the 2017-18 state mathematics exam performed 
at a proficient level. 79.4% of students enrolled in at least their second year performed at a 
proficient level. 
Sisulu-Walker met the absolute measure for math proficiency. 75.3% of students in at least their 
second year scored at or above level three on the state mathematics assessment exam. The school 
exceeded its goal of 75% proficiency by .3 percentage points. 

Performance on 2018-19 State Mathematics Exam 
By All Students and Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second Year 

6 Students exempted from this exam according to their Individualized Education Program (IEP), because of English Language 
Learners (ELL) status, or absence for at least some part of the exam. 
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MATHEMATICS 

Grades 
All Students Enrolled in at least their 

Second Year 

Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested 

Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested 

3 74.2% 31 79.2% 24 
4 85.7% 21 88.2% 17 
5 68.0% 25 72.7% 22 
All 75.32% 77 79.4% 63 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
Sisulu-Walker showed a vast overall improvement in the percentage of students performing at a 
proficient level on the state mathematics assessment exam from the 2016-17 and 2017-18 school 
years. Additionally, the school showed a significant increase in the percentage of students 
performing at or above proficiency at each grade tested. 

Over the last three school years, the school showed both longitudinal and latitudinal growth. For 
example, in the 2016-17 school year, 40% of 3rd grade students enrolled at the school for at least 
two years achieved proficiency on the mathematics exam. When that same group of students 
took the mathematics exam as 5th grade students in the 2018-19 school year, 63.6% achieved 
proficiency. 
The most notable latitudinal improvements occurred at the 4th grade, where the percentage of 
students testing at a proficient level increased nearly 26 percentage points. 

Mathematics Performance by Grade Level and School Year 

Grade 

Percent of Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second Year 
Achieving Proficiency 

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 

Percent Number 
Tested Percent Number 

Tested Percent Number 
Tested 

3 70.0% 20 100% 12 79.2% 24 
4 62.5% 40 86.7% 15 88.2% 17 
5 60.6% 33 34.1% 41 72.7% 22 
All 63.4% 93 57.4% 68 79.4% 63 

Goal 2:  Absolute Measure 

Each year, the school’s aggregate Performance Index (“PI”) on the state mathematics exam will 
meet that year’s state Measure of Interim Progress (“MIP”) set forth in the state’s ESSA 
accountability system. 

METHOD 
In New York State, ESSA school performance goals are met by showing that an absolute proportion 
of a school's students who have taken the mathematics test have scored at the partially proficient, 
or proficient and advanced performance levels (Levels 2 or 3 & 4). The percentage of students at 
each of these three levels is used to calculate a PI and determine if the school has met the MIP set 
each year by the state’s ESSA accountability system. To achieve this measure, all tested students 
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MATHEMATICS 

must have a PI value that equals or exceeds the state’s 2018-19 mathematics MIP for all students of 
107. The PI is the sum of the percent of students in all tested grades combined scoring at Level 2, 
plus two times the percent of students scoring at Level 3, plus two-and-a-half times the percent of 
students scoring at Level 4. Thus, the highest possible PI is 250. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
Brief narrative highlighting results in the data tables that directly addresses the measure by 
comparing the PI to this year’s MIP. Narrative explicitly stating whether the school met the 
measure and discussing by how much the school fell short of or exceeded the measure, as well as 
notable performance in specific grades and populations. Also, use this section to explain the results 
in the context of the school program, attributing the results to effective practices or problem areas. 

Sisulu-Walker met this measure, achieving an aggregate PLI score of 188 on the mathematics 
exam in the 2018-19 school year. Sisulu-Walker exceeded the state’s 2018-19 mathematics MIP 
goal of 107 by 81 percentage points. 

Mathematics 2017-18 Performance Level Index (PI) 
Number in Percent of Students at Each Performance Level 
Cohort Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 4 

6 18 35 40 

PI = 18 + 35 + 40 = 93 
35 + 40 = 75 

+ (.5)*40] = 20 
PI = 188 

Goal 2: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of all tested students who are enrolled in at least their second year and 
performing at proficiency on the state mathematics exam will be greater than that of all students in 
the same tested grades in the school district of comparison. 

METHOD 
A school compares the performance of tested students enrolled in at least their second year to that 
of all tested students in the public school district of comparison. Comparisons are between the 
results for each grade in which the school had tested students in at least their second year at the 
school and the total result for all students at the corresponding grades in the school district.7 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
Brief narrative highlighting results in the data table that directly addresses the measure, e.g. the 
aggregate charter school performance compared to the aggregate district performance in the same 
tested grades. Narrative explicitly stating whether or not the school met the measure; i.e., whether 
the charter school fell short of, equaled or exceeded the aggregate district performance and by how 

7 Schools can acquire these data when the New York State Education Department releases its database containing grade level 
ELA and math test results for all schools and districts statewide. The NYSED announces the release of the data on its News 
Release webpage. 
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MATHEMATICS 

much. In addition the evaluation may also include a discussion of specific grade levels’ comparative 
performance. 

The chart below shows the percentage of students performing at or above level three on the state 
mathematics assessment exam enrolled in at least their second year at Sisulu-Walker compared to the 
average of all tested students in the surrounding public-school district, Community School District 3. 

Overall, the percentage of Sisulu-Walker students achieving proficiency on the state mathematics 
exam was nearly 15 percentage points above the district average when comparing similar grades. 
Additionally, each grade level tested at Sisulu-Walker had a higher percentage of students 
performing at a proficient level when compared to Community School District 3 on the 2017-18 
state mathematics exam. Most notably, the percentage of Sisulu-Walker 3rd grade students 
achieving proficiency on the 2018-19 mathematics exam exceeded the 3rd grade district average 
by nearly 22 percentage points. Additionally, the percentage of Sisulu-Walker 4th grade students 
achieving proficiency on the 2018-19 mathematics exam exceeded the 4th grade district average 
by nearly 21 percentage points. 

2018-19 State Mathematics Exam 
Charter School and District Performance by Grade Level 

Grade 

Percent of Students at or Above Proficiency 
Charter School Students 

In At Least 2nd Year All District Students 

Percent Number 
Tested Percent Number 

Tested 
3 79.2% 24 67.5% 1370 
4 88.2% 17 67.3% 1284 
5 72.7% 22 59.8% 1286 
All 79.4% 63 64.9% 3940 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
Narrative provides a discussion of the charter school’s performance in comparison to the local 
district in previous years. In addition, the school can use a supplemental table for this section on a 
comparison of the charter school to selected local schools. The table shell appears in the Appendix. 

Also, additional evidence may include demographic differences between the school and the district 
as well as compelling reasons for comparing the school to a subset of schools within the district. 
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MATHEMATICS 

Mathematics Performance of Charter School and Local District 
by Grade Level and School Year 

Grade 

Percent of Students Enrolled in at Least their Second Year Who Are at 
Proficiency Compared to Local District Students 

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 
Charter 
School District Charter 

School District Charter 
School District 

3 70.0% 24.7% 100% 66% 79.2% 67.5% 
4 62.5% 18.3% 86.7% 66% 88.2% 67.3% 
5 60.6% 21.0% 34.1% 59% 72.7% 59.8% 
All 63.4% 21.4% 57.4% 63.8% 79.4% 64.9% 

As shown through the chart above, Sisulu-Walker has had a higher percentage of students performing 
at a proficient level on the state mathematics exam in the 2016-17 school year, when their comparator 
district was Community School District 5, the district from which the majority of Sisulu-Walker 
students reside. Indeed, the gap between Sisulu-Walker and Community School District 5 was 
significant: 42 percentage points. When the school’s comparison district was changed to also include 
Community School District 3 in the 2017-18 school year, Sisulu-Walker had a lower percentage of 
students achieving proficiency than the district. However, in the 2018-19 school year, Sisulu-Walker 
had a higher percentage of students performing at a proficient level on the state mathematics exam than 
the district. Indeed, Sisulu-Walker outperformed the district on the 2018-19 mathematics exam by 14.5 
percentage points. Impressively, from the 2017-18 school year to the 2018-19 school year, the 
percentage of Sisulu-Walker students achieving proficiency on the state mathematics exam increased 
by 22 percentage points. During this same time, the district increased by 1.1 percentage points. 

Goal 2: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the school will exceed its predicted level of performance on the state mathematics exam 
by an Effect Size of 0.3 or above (performing higher than expected to a meaningful degree) 
according to a regression analysis controlling for economically disadvantaged students among all 
public schools in New York State. 

METHOD 
The Institute conducts a Comparative Performance Analysis, which compares the school’s 
performance to that of demographically similar public schools statewide. The Institute uses a 
regression analysis to control for the percentage of economically disadvantaged students among all 
public schools in New York State. The Institute compares the school’s actual performance to the 
predicted performance of public schools with a similar concentration of economically 
disadvantaged students. The difference between the school’s actual and predicted performance, 
relative to other schools with similar economically disadvantaged statistics, produces an Effect Size. 
An Effect Size of 0.3, or performing higher than expected to a meaningful degree, is the 
requirement for achieving this measure. 

Given the timing of the state’s release of economically disadvantaged data and the demands of the 
data analysis, the 2017-18 analysis is not yet available. This report contains 2017-18 results, the 
most recent Comparative Performance Analysis available. 
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MATHEMATICS 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
Provide a brief narrative highlighting 2017-18 results in the data table that directly addresses the 
critical data: overall Effect Size. In addition, the discussion may also include highlighting individual 
grade levels and their respective Effect Sizes. Narrative explicitly stating whether the school met 
the measure; i.e. whether the school’s aggregate Effect Size exceeded 0.3 and, if not, whether it 
was at least a positive Effect Size. In addition, the narrative may also include specific grade levels’ 
comparative performance. 

In the 2016-17 school year, Sisulu-Walker’s Effect Size was 1.35. 

Sisulu-Walker met its measure by having an aggregate Effect Size that was higher than expected to 
a large degree. The school’s performance was over four times the minimal requirement for 
achieving the desired effect size. 
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MATHEMATICS 

2017-18 Mathematics Comparative Performance by Grade Level 

Grade 
Percent 

Economically 
Disadvantaged 

Number 
Tested 

Percent of Students 
at Levels 3&4 

Actual Predicted 

Difference 
between Actual 
and Predicted 

Effect 
Size 

3 84.6 21 85.7 43.3 42.5 1.96 
4 92.9 21 90.5 32.7 57.8 2.90 
5 89.6 44 34.1 28.4 5.7 0.33 
All 89.2 86 60.5 33.1 27.4 1.35 

School’s Overall Comparative Performance: 

Higher than expected to large degree 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
Narrative provides a discussion of current and past performance on this comparative measure, 
including trends over time. 

On the 2017-18 state mathematics assessment exam, Sisulu-Walker’s Effect Size was 1.35. Sisulu-
Walker has met the required effect size in each of the last three school years on the state 
mathematics exam. 

Mathematics Comparative Performance by School Year 

School 
Year Grades 

Percent 
Economically 
Disadvantaged 

Number 
Tested Actual Predicted Effect 

Size 

2015-16 3-5 78.2 139 48.1 33.8 .71 
2016-17 3-5 86.4 118 60.2 29.7 1.55 
2017-18 3-5 89.2 86 60.5 33.1 1.35 

Goal 2: Growth Measure8 

Each year, under the state’s Growth Model, the school’s mean unadjusted growth percentile in 
mathematics for all tested students in grades 4-8 will be above the target of 50. 

METHOD 
This measure examines the change in performance of the same group of students from one year to 
the next and the progress they are making in comparison to other students with the same score in 
the previous year. The analysis only includes students who took the state exam in 2017-18 and also 
have a state exam score in 2016-17 including students who were retained in the same grade. 
Students with the same 2016-17 scores are ranked by their 2017-18 scores and assigned a 
percentile based on their relative growth in performance (student growth percentile). Students’ 
growth percentiles are aggregated school-wide to yield a school’s mean growth percentile. In order 

8 See Guidelines for Creating a SUNY Accountability Plan for an explanation. 
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MATHEMATICS 

for a school to meet the measure, the school would have to achieve a mean growth percentile 
above the target of 50. 

Given the timing of the state’s release of Growth Model data, the 2018-19 analysis is not yet 
available. This report contains 2017-18 results, the most recent Growth Model data available.9 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
Provide a brief narrative highlighting 2017-18 results in the data table that directly addresses the 
critical data: the school’s mean growth percentile. In addition, the discussion may also include 
highlighting individual grade levels and their respective percentiles. Narrative explicitly stating 
whether the school met the measure; i.e. whether the school’s overall mean growth percentile is 
greater than the target of 50. In addition, the narrative may also include discussion of specific 
grade-level results. 

Sisulu-Walker’s mathematics mean growth percentile in the 2017-18 school year was 41.8, 
below the statewide median. 
Sisulu-Walker’s overall mean growth percentile was below the statewide average, but the 
school’s 4th grade also exceeded the statewide targeted mean growth percentile by over 20 
percentage points. 

2017-18 Mathematics Mean Growth Percentile by Grade Level 

Grade Mean Growth Percentile 
School Target 

4 70.2 50.0 
5 28.0 50.0 

All 41.8 50.0 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
Sisulu-Walker exceeded the state’s mathematics target mean growth percentile goal in two of the 
last three years. While the school did not meet the overall goal in the 2017-18 school year, this is 
largely attributable to the school’s 5th grade class, which scored 22 points below the target, while 
the 4th grade class exceeded the target by over 20 points. 

Mathematics Mean Growth Percentile by Grade Level and School Year 

Grade 
Mean Growth Percentile 

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 Target 
4 61.2 59.1 70.2 50.0 
5 41.9 42.9 28.0 50.0 

All 52.7 51.4 41.8 50.0 

9 Schools can acquire these data from the NYSED’s business portal: portal.nysed.gov. 
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MATHEMATICS 

SUMMARY OF THE MATHEMATICS GOAL 
Present a narrative providing an overview of which measures the school achieved, as well as an 
overall discussion of its attainment of this Accountability Plan goal. 

In the 2018-19 school year, Sisulu-Walker achieved both of its absolute and comparative goals, but 
did not achieve it’s growth goal. 

Type Measure Outcome 

Absolute 
Each year, 75 percent of all tested students who are enrolled in at least 
their second year will perform at proficiency on the New York State 
mathematics exam for grades 3-8. 

Met 

Absolute 
Each year, the school’s aggregate PI on the state’s mathematics exam will 
meet that year’s state MIP as set forth in the state’s ESSA accountability 
system. 

Met 

Comparative 
Each year, the percent of all tested students who are enrolled in at least 
their second year and performing at proficiency on the state mathematics 
exam will be greater than that of students in the same tested grades in the 
school district of comparison. 

Met 

Comparative 

Each year, the school will exceed its predicted level of performance on the 
state mathematics exam by an Effect Size of 0.3 or above (performing 
higher than expected to a meaningful degree) according to a regression 
analysis controlling for economically disadvantaged students among all 
public schools in New York State. (Using 2017-18 results.) 

Met 

Growth 
Each year, under the state’s Growth Model the school’s mean unadjusted 
growth percentile in mathematics for all tested students in grades 4-8 will 
be above the target of 50. (Using the 2017-18 results.) 

No Met 

ACTION PLAN 
Narrative explaining what specific steps the school will take to maintain or improve academic 
performance based on the specific results associated with this goal, focusing in particular on 
strategic interventions including providing enhanced support or program revisions for explicit 
grades, cohorts or sub-populations. 

Curriculum 
• Teachers will continue to develop mathematics games aligned to units of study to ensure that students have 

meaningful opportunities to engage in repeated independent practice. 

Instruction 

• The mathematics block has been divided into three 30-minute periods. Each class has two 
teachers assigned to deliver instruction. Students will be divided into 3 homogenous groups.  
During one rotation, teachers will use the gradual release model to teach students new concepts. 
During the second rotation, teachers will re-teach math concepts that were not mastered from 
the previous day’s lesson or the daily lesson based on exit ticket results or address deficits 
identified on interim assessments. Students will work independently during the last rotation on 
a daily constructed response or use math games and centers to provide repeated practice. 

• An intervention teacher will be assigned to each class in grades 3-5. The intervention teacher 

Sisulu-Walker Charter School of Harlem 2017-18 Accountability Plan Progress Report Page 23 of 32 



 

             

 
 

 

  
 

 
              

  
 

 
 

  
    

  
 

 

  

 

 
   

  
 

MATHEMATICS 

assigned to each class will work closely with the lead teacher to provide strategic intervention 
during the second mathematic block based on the results of our internal assessments (6-week 
assessment). 

Assessment 

• SWCS has discontinued use of mathematics assessments generated by Victory Education 
Partners. We now employ Rally assessments for interim assessments and unit-based 
assessments. 

• We increased the number of interim assessments students will take during the academic year 
from four to five. Assessments will be administered every six weeks. Teachers will use 
assessment data to create action plans for cohorts of students. Students will be divided into the 
following categories: 0-70%-Intensive Intervention, 71-85-Strategic Intervention and 86-
100%-Benchmark. Action plans will consist of whole group intervention strategies and 
targeted small group support. Students will receive a bi-weekly math assessment to ensure that 
the period devoted to re-teaching is data-driven and we respond to gaps in student 
understanding earlier. 

• Each unit of study will include a pre-test and post-test, so we can measure mastery of standards 
between interim assessments and provide remediation on problem standards prior to 
administering six-week assessments. 

Professional Development 

• Pre-Service included one-to-one coaching sessions with teachers to develop lesson plans on 
efficacy in mathematics instruction and strategies for increasing student engagement and 
developing fluency. 

• A math specialist will work with teachers in grades 3-5 to ensure that lessons are standards 
based, rigorous and engaging. Teachers will participate in co-planning sessions with the 
specialist. The specialist will observe teachers and provide them with real-time feedback as 
well as model lessons for teachers. 
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2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

GOAL 3: SCIENCE 

Goal 3: Science 
All students at the school will demonstrate competency in the understanding and application of 
scientific reasoning. 

BACKGROUND 
Sisulu-Walker uses an interdisciplinary approach to teach science that is student-centered and inquiry 
based. The science curriculum for each grade is composed of units of study in Life Science, Earth 
Science, and Physical Science that are aligned to the New York State Standards and the Common Core 
Standards. All grade levels start with a unit on inquiry followed by four to five grade specific units. 

The instructional strategy behind each lesson concept is ENGAGE, EXPLORE, EXPLAIN, 
EXTEND/APPLY and EVALUATE. These are researched and proven strategies for having students 
develop deeper understanding of science concepts; a detailed description of each component is listed 
on the following page. We further support scientific understanding by reading and writing about 
science content as part of the science block. In addition to the leveled readers, teachers have additional 
trade books to support the science curriculum. Our science curriculum provides the hands-on 
experience, inquiry, and investigation opportunities needed to educate students with multiple 
experiences to construct their own understanding, and science knowledge and apply what they learn to 
the real world. In addition to thematic units of study, each grade observes and investigates a live animal 
during the year. Teachers are encouraged to have classroom pets as well. 

Goal 3: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of all tested students enrolled in at least their second year will perform at or 
above proficiency on the New York State science examination. 

METHOD 
The school administered the New York State Testing Program science assessment to students in 4th 

and 8th grade in spring 2019. The school converted each student’s raw score to a performance level 
and a grade-specific scaled score. The criterion for success on this measure requires students 
enrolled in at least their second year to score at proficiency. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
Brief narrative highlighting results in the data table below that directly addresses the measure, i.e. 
the overall percent of students in at least their second year achieving proficiency. Narrative 
explicitly stating whether the school met the measure and discussing by how much the school fell 
short of or exceeded the measure, as well as notable performance in specific grades and 
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2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

populations. Also, use this section to explain the results in the context of the school program, 
attributing the results to effective practices or problem areas. 

100% of Sisulu-Walker’s students in at least their second year at the school tested at a proficient 
level on the New York State Science exam. 
Sisulu-Walker achieved this goal. 100% of the school’s students in at least their second year at 
the school tested at a proficient level on the State Science exam, 25 percentage points above the 
stated goal. 

Charter School Performance on 2018-19 State Science Exam 
By All Students and Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second Year 

Grade 
Percent of Students at Proficiency of Students in At 

Least 2nd Year 
Percent Proficient Number Tested 

4 100% 17 
All 100% 17 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
In the years in which the State Science exam scores have been administered, the percentage of 
Sisulu-Walker’s students testing at a proficient level and enrolled in at least their second year greatly 
exceeded the stated goal of 75%. 

Science Performance by Grade Level and School Year 

Grade 

Percent of Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second Year at 
Proficiency 

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 
Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested Percent Number 

Tested 
Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested 

4 81.4% 43 100% 17 100% 17 
All 81.4% 43 100% 17 100% 17 

Goal 3: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of all tested students enrolled in at least their second year and performing at 
proficiency on the state science exam will be greater than that of all students in the same tested 
grades in the school district of comparison. 

METHOD 
The school compares tested students enrolled in at least their second year to all tested students in 
the public school district of comparison. Comparisons are between the results for each grade in 
which the school had tested students in at least their second year and the results for the respective 
grades in the school district of comparison. Given the timing of the state’s release of district 
science data, the 2018-19 comparative data may not yet be available. If not, schools should report 
comparison to the district’s 2017-18 data. 
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2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
Brief narrative highlighting results in the data table that directly addresses the measure; e.g. the 
charter school performance compared to the district performance in the same tested grades. 
Narrative explicitly stating whether or not the school met the measure; i.e. whether the charter 
school fell short of, equaled or exceeded the district performance in each grade and by how much. 

At the time of this report’s submission, the district state science exam results were not available. 

2018-19 State Science Exam 
Charter School and District Performance by Grade Level 

Grade 

Percent of Students at Proficiency 
Charter School Students 

In At Least 2nd Year All District Students10 

Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested 

Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested 

4 100% 17 N/A N/A 
All 100% 17 N/A N/A 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
Narrative provides a discussion of the charter school’s performance in comparison to the local 
district in previous years. 

At the time of this report’s submission, the district state science exam results for the last three 
academic years were not available. 

Science Performance of Charter School and Local District 
by Grade Level and School Year 

Grade 

Percent of Charter School Students at Proficiency and Enrolled in At Least their 
Second Year Compared to Local District Students 

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 
Charter 
School District Charter 

School District Charter 
School District 

4 81.4% N/A 100% N/A 100% N/A 
All 81.4% N/A 100% N/A 100% N/A 

SUMMARY OF THE SCIENCE GOAL 
Present a narrative providing an overview of which measures the school achieved, as well as an 
overall discussion of its attainment of this Accountability Plan goal. 

Sisulu-Walker achieved its absolute goal. The district’s Science score was not available at the time 
this report was written. Thus, the comparative goal cannot be measured. 

10 This table uses the prior year’s results as 2018-19 district science scores are not yet available. 
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2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

Type Measure Outcome 

Absolute 
Each year, 75 percent of all tested students enrolled in at 
least their second year will perform at or above proficiency 
on the New York State examination. 

Met 

Comparative 

Each year, the percent of all tested students enrolled in at 
least their second year and performing at proficiency on the 
state exam will be greater than that of all students in the 
same tested grades in the school district of comparison. 

N/A 

ACTION PLAN 
Curriculum 

• A math/science consultant will develop science curriculum maps aligned to the Common 
Core Standards and the new science standards. Teachers develop lesson plans using the 
curriculum maps as a guide as well as instructional notes. Additional trade books were 
purchased to supplement the science curriculum. 

Instruction 

• This year, students will continue to have science instruction daily for 45 minutes. The five 
day structure for science will include reading and writing to build content knowledge and 
vocabulary and weekly investigations for students to apply what they have learned. There 
will also be an emphasis on reading and analyzing diagrams. 

Assessment 

• Students will be assessed informally during lesson via reading, writing and experimentation. 
The analysis of diagrams related to units of study will be employed. Students will also take 
teacher-generated assessments at the end of science each unit. 

Professional Development 

• The Principal and Assistant Principal will provide individual support through lesson 
development, co-planning and modeling. 

GOAL 4: ESSA 

Goal 4: ESSA 
Sisulu-Walker will be in good standing pursuant to the state’s ESSA accountability system 

Goal 4: Absolute Measure 

Under the state’s ESSA accountability system, the school is in good standing:  the state has not 
identified the school for comprehensive or targeted improvement. 
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2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

METHOD 
Because all students are expected to meet the state's performance standards, the federal statute 
stipulates that various sub-populations and demographic categories of students among all tested 
students must meet the state standard in and of themselves aside from the overall school results. 
As New York State, like all states, is required to establish a specific system for making these 
determinations for its public schools, charter schools do not have latitude in establishing their own 
performance levels or criteria of success for meeting the ESSA accountability requirements. Each 
year, the state issues School Report Cards that indicate a school’s status under the state 
accountability system. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
The school met its goal of good standing for the 2017-18 school year. 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
Sisulu-Walker has been in good standing in each of the last three school years. 

Accountability Status by Year 
Year Status 

2016-17 Good standing 
2017-18 Good standing 
2018-19 Good standing 
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Entry 4 Expenditures per Child 
Last updated: 07/27/2019 

SISULU-WALKER CHARTER SCHOOL OF HARLEMSection Heading 

Financial Information 

This information is required of ALL charter schools. Provide the following measures of fiscal 
performance of the charter school in Appendix B (Total Expenditures and Administrative Expenditures 

Per Child): 

1. Total Expenditures Per Child 

To calculate ‘Total Expenditures per Child’ take total expenditures (from the unaudited 2018-
19 Schedule of Functional Expenses) and divide by the year end FTE student enrollment. 
(Integers Only. No dollar signs or commas). 

Note: The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41–43 of the 

Audit Guide can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil 
calculations: Audit Guide available within the portal or on the NYSED website 

at: http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/regentsoversightplan/otherdocuments/auditguide2018.pdf. 

Line 1: Total Expenditures 3992554 

Line 2: Year End FTE student enrollment 215 

Line 3: Divide Line 1 by Line 2 18554 

1 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		

		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	

2. Administrative Expenditures per Child 

To calculate ‘Administrative Expenditures per Child' To calculate “Administrative Expenditures per 
Child” first add together the following: 

1. Take the relevant portion from the ‘personnel services cost’ row and the ‘management and general’ 
column (from the unaudited 2018 19 Schedule of Functional Expenses) 

2. Any contracted administrative/management fee paid to other organizations or corporations 

3. Take the total from above and divide it by the year end FTE enrollment. The relevant portion that must 
be included in this calculation is defined as follows: 

Administrative Expenditures: Administration and management of the charter school includes the 

activities and personnel of the offices of the chief school officer, the finance or business offices, school 
operations personnel, data management and reporting, human resources, technology, etc. It also 

includes those administrative and management services provided by other organizations or corporations 

on behalf of the charter school for which the charter school pays a fee or other compensation. Do not 
include the FTE of personnel whose role is to directly support the instructional program. 

Notes: 
The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41–43 of the Audit Guide 

can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil calculations: 
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html. 
Employee benefit costs or expenditures should not be reported in the above calculations. 

Line 1: Relevant Personnel Services 
Cost (Row) 

Line 2: Management and General Cost
(Column) 

Line 3: Sum of Line 1 and Line 2 

Line 5: Divide Line 3 by the Year End
FTE student enrollment 

Thank you. 

426832 

172051 

598883 

2783 

2 / 2 
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Independent Auditors' Report 

To the Board of Trustees of 
Sisulu-Walker Charter School of Harlem, Inc. 
New York, New York 

Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sisulu-Walker Charter School of Harlem, Inc. (a nonprofit 
organization) which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019, and the related statements of activities and 
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of 
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial 
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Sisulu-
Walker Charter School of Harlem, Inc. as of June 30, 2019, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matter 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The schedule of 
functional expenses on page 11 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial 
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or 
to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the 
financial statements as a whole. 

w w w . c p a t r u s t . c o m 



   
   

Report on Summarized Comparative Information 
We have previously audited Sisulu-Walker Charter School of Harlem, Inc.’s 2018 financial statements, and our report dated 
October 25, 2018, expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited financial statements. In our opinion, the summarized 
comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, is consistent, in all material respects, with 
the audited financial statements from which it has been derived. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 25, 2019, on our 
consideration of Sisulu-Walker Charter School of Harlem, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that 
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral 
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Sisulu-Walker Charter School of 
Harlem, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

New City, New York 

October 25, 2019 

w w w . c p a t r u s t . c o m 



 
                

                         
                                        

                   

  
                     

                       

                    

                         

 
                           

                            

           

   

                        
                        

                         

 
                        

                

       

     
   

  

      

Sisulu-Walker Charter School of Harlem, Inc. 
Statement of Financial Position 

June 30, 2019 
(With Summarized Comparative Information For June 30, 2018) 

ASSETS 2019 2018 

Current Assets 
Cash 913,014 $ 728,120 $ 
Due from Government Agencies (Note 3) 111,761 181,326 
Accounts Receivable 3,481 -

Total Current Assets 1,028,256 909,446 

Fixed Assets 
Leasehold Improvements 120,427 118,077 
Equipment, Furniture and Fixtures 720,002 715,782 

840,429 833,859 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (759,294) (720,819) 

Total Fixed Assets 81,135 113,040 

Other Assets 
Security Deposits 37,500 37,500 

Total Other Assets 37,500 37,500 

Total Assets 1,146,891 $ 1,059,986 $ 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Liabilities 
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 77,220 $ 73,157 $ 
Accrued Payroll and Related Expenses 253,996 236,838 

Total Current Liabilities / Total Liabilities 331,216 309,995 

Net Assets 
Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions 815,675 749,991 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 1,146,891 $ 1,059,986 $ 

(3) 
See accompanying notes and independent auditors' report. 



     

                                       
                                                      

                                                         
                                                               

                                                                           

                                   

                                                                     

                                               

 
                                             

                                                

                                            
 

                                                        

                                             

                                                                

                                                          
  

                                                                                  

     
  

      
          

      

Sisulu-Walker Charter School of Harlem, Inc. 
Statement of Activities 

For the year ended June 30, 2019 
(With Summarized Comparative Information For The Year Ended June 30, 2018) 

2019 
Without With 

Donor Donor 
PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUE Restrictions Restrictions Total 2018 

Resident Student Enrollment $ 3,783,767 $ - $ 3,783,767 $ 3,507,441 
Federal Funding - 152,103 152,103 155,592 
State Funding - 101,485 101,485 77,834 
Corporate Contributions 29,660 - 29,660 36,209 
Interest Income 847 - 847 2,266 

Total Public Support and Revenue 3,814,274 253,588 4,067,862 3,779,342 

Net Assets Released From Restrictions 253,588 (253,588) - -

Total Support and Revenue 4,067,862 - 4,067,862 3,779,342 

EXPENSES 

Program Services 
Regular Education 2,266,983 - 2,266,983 2,094,550 
Special Education 1,073,577 - 1,073,577 957,364 

3,340,560 - 3,340,560 3,051,914 
Supporting Services 

Management and General 661,618 - 661,618 555,913 

Total Expenses 4,002,178 - 4,002,178 3,607,827 

Change in Net Assets 65,684 - 65,684 171,515 

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 749,991 - 749,991 578,476 

Net Assets, End of Year $ 815,675 $ - $ 815,675 $ 749,991 

(4) 
See accompanying notes and independent auditors' report. 



    
                  
                              
                                         

                  
                    

                               

    
                                   
                                   

                                   

                             

                              

                          

            

                            
       

     
                               

    
   

                              
                                           

                                          

   
                                   

                                  

                            
 

                           

     
   

      
          

      

Sisulu-Walker Charter School of Harlem, Inc. 
Statement of Cash Flows 

For the year ended June 30, 2019 
(With Summarized Comparative Information For The Year Ended June 30, 2018) 

2019 2018 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Receipts from Resident Student Enrollment 3,846,868 $ 3,375,126 $ 
Receipts from Grants and Contributions 286,232 273,492 
Receipts from Other Revenue 847 2,266 
Payments to Employees (2,813,393) (2,455,000) 
Payments to Vendors and Suppliers (1,129,090) (1,078,852) 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 191,464 117,032 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Payments for Leasehold Improvements (2,350) (3,690) 
Purchases of Equipment, Furniture and Fixtures (4,220) (12,034) 

Net Cash Used In Investing Activities (6,570) (15,724) 

NET INCREASE IN CASH 184,894 101,308 

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 728,120 626,812 

CASH AT END OF YEAR 913,014 $ 728,120 $ 

RECONCILIATION OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Change in Unrestricted Net Assets 65,684 $ 171,515 $ 
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities: 
Depreciation 38,475 38,758 

Changes in Assets and Liabilities 
(Increase) / Decrease in: 

Due from Government Agencies 69,565 (128,458) 
Accounts Receivable (3,481) -
Prepaid Expenses - 39,784 

Increase / (Decrease) in: 
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 4,063 (25,401) 
Accrued Payroll and Related Expenses 17,158 20,834 

Total Adjustments 125,780 (54,483) 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 191,464 $ 117,032 $ 

(5) 
See accompanying notes and independent auditors' report. 



     
    

  

Sisulu-Walker Charter School of Harlem, Inc. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION 

Sisulu-Walker Charter School of Harlem, Inc. (the “School”) is a charter school for children located in Harlem, New 
York. In fiscal year 2014, the School operated grades kindergarten through fifth. It educates children in a 
completely nondiscriminatory and secular basis. The founders and supporters of the School believe that access to 
a public education of high quality for all children is the foremost issue. The School was chartered during August 
1999 and the first classes were offered during the 1999-2000 school year. Charter was renewed in 2016 and 
extended thru 2021. 

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Accounting 
The financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Revenues are recognized when earned and 
expenses are recognized when incurred. 

New Accounting Pronouncement 
On August 18, 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958) – Presentation of Financial 
Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The School as adjusted the presentation of its financial statements 
accordingly, applying the changes retrospectively to the comparative period presented. The new standard changes 
the following aspects of the School's financial statements: net asset classification and a new disclosure about 
liquidity and availability of resources. Accordingly, the School reviewed all of its net asset classification and 
reclassified $749,991 of unrestricted net assets to net assets without donor restrictions as of July 1, 2018. 

Basis of Presentation 
The financial statements are presented in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) 
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 958 dated August 2016, and the provisions of the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) “Audit and Accounting Guide for Not-for-Profit Organizations” (the “Guide”). 
(ASC) 958-205 was effective July 1, 2018. 

Under the provisions of the Guide, net assets and revenues, and gains and losses are classified based on the 
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, the net assets of the Organization and changes 
therein are classified as follows: 

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions and may be 
expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the Organization. The Organization’s board may 
designate assets without restrictions for specific operational purposes from time to time. 

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors, and grantors. Some 
donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by the 
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, where by the donor has stipulated the funds be 
maintained in perpetuity. 

Earnings related to restricted net assets will be included in net assets without donor restrictions unless otherwise 
specifically required to be included in donor-restricted net assets by the donor or by applicable state law. 

All net assets of the Organization at June 30, 2019 were considered to be net assets without donor restrictions. 

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in The United 
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts 
and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

(6) 



     
    

  

Sisulu-Walker Charter School of Harlem, Inc. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Functional Allocation of Expenses 
Expenses relating to more than one function are allocated to program service and management and general based 
on employee time estimates or other appropriate usage factors. 

Support and Revenue Recognition 
Unconditional contributions are recognized when pledged and recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or 
net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor-imposed restrictions. 
Conditional promises to give are recognized when the conditions on which they depend are substantially met. Gifts 
of cash and other assets are reported with donor restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that 
limit the use of the donated assets. When a restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or a 
purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor 
restrictions and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions. Donor-restricted 
contributions whose restrictions are met in the same reporting period are reported as net assets without donor 
restriction support. 

Revenue from grants and contracts is recognized as the related costs are incurred under the grant or contract 
agreement. This support may be subject to approved budgets, as amended, and may be subject to possible 
adjustment after audit by the granting agencies. The fiscal periods of these grants and contracts may differ from the 
fiscal year end of the School. The School believes all accounts receivable at June 30, 2019 will be fully collected. 
Accordingly, no allowance for doubtful accounts is required. Deferred amounts represent cash received in advance of 
related expenditures. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the School considers all highly liquid investments available for 
current use with an initial period of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 

Tax Exempt Status 
The School is a tax-exempt organization under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and applicable state 
regulations and, accordingly, is exempt from federal and state taxes on income. The School has filed for and received 
income tax exemptions in the jurisdictions where it is required to do so. 

The School files the Form 990 in the U.S. federal jurisdiction. With few exceptions, as of June 30, 2019, the School is 
no longer subject to U.S. Federal income tax examinations by tax authorities for the years ended prior to June 30, 
2016. The tax returns for the years ended June 30, 2016 through June 30, 2018 are still subject to potential audit by 
the IRS. Management of the School believes it has no material uncertain tax positions and, accordingly it has not 
recognized any liability for unrecognized tax benefits. 

Leasehold Improvements Furniture and Fixtures, and Equipment 
Leasehold improvements, furniture and equipment are valued at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is 
computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the related assets or the term of the lease 
agreement. Normal replacement and maintenance costs are charged to earnings a incurred, and major renewals and 
improvements are capitalized. Upon disposition, the cost and related accumulated depreciation is removed from the 
accounts and the resulting gain or loss for the period. The School capitalizes assets with cost of $500 and over. 
Depreciation is calculated based on the useful lives of the assets as follows: Leasehold Improvements 5 Years, 
Equipment and Furniture 3 - 7 Years. 

Contributed Services 
Contributed services that create or enhance nonfinancial assets, or that require specialized skills, are provided by 
individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation, are 
recorded at fair value in the period received. 

(7) 



     
    

  

Sisulu-Walker Charter School of Harlem, Inc. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Contributed Services (continued) 
A number of volunteers have made a contribution of their time to the School to develop academic and other 
programs and to serve on the board of trustees. The value of this contributed time is not reflected in the financial 
statements as such services either do not require specialized skills or would not typically be purchased had they not 
been provided as donations. 

Comparative Financial Information 
The June 30, 2018 financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in total but 
not by net asset class. As a result, the June 30, 2018 comparative information does not include sufficient detail to 
constitute a presentation in conformity with U.S. GAAP. Accordingly, such June 30, 2018 information should be read 
in conjunction with the School's financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2018, from which the summarized 
information was derived. 

NOTE 3 – DUE FROM GOVERNMENT AGENCIES 

Under the School's Charter School Agreement and the Charter School Act, the School is entitled to receive funding 
from both State and Federal sources that are available to public schools. These funds include State pupil enrollment 
funds and Federal food subsidies and Title I, IIA, IID, IV and V funds. The calculation of the amounts to be paid to the 
School under these programs is determined by the State, and is based on complex laws and regulations, enrollment 
levels, and economic information related to the home school district of the children enrolled in the school. If these 
regulations, some of which are relatively new in the State of New York, were to change, or other factors included in 
the calculations were to change, the level of funding that the School receives could vary significantly. As of June 30, 
2019, $111,761 is due from government agencies. 

NOTE 4 – DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN 

The School offers a 401(k) plan (the "Plan") for substantially all of its employees. Employees are eligible for the plan 
immediately upon employment and participation in the Plan is voluntary. Employees may contribute up to 15% of 
their annual compensation to the Plan, limited to a maximum annual amount as set periodically by the Internal 
Revenue Service. The School matches the employee contribution 100% up to 4% of the employee's annual 
compensation. The School's contribution recognized in the statement of activities was $49,236 for 2019. The Plan 
assets are held in a separate trust and are not included in the accompanying financial statements. All plan assets are 
held for the exclusive benefit of the Plan's participants and beneficiaries. 

NOTE 5 – CONSULTANTS - EDUCATION 

In January 2007, the School entered into a Second Charter School Management Agreement with Victory Schools, Inc. 
(VSI) d/b/a Victory Education Partners (VEP) to provide services related to certain education and operational aspects 
of the School. Victory serves as an advisor regarding functions associated with the educational services to be 
provided to the students at the School and consults with the School with respect to its legal and operational 
compliance in accordance with the terms of the charter and the Charter School Act. VEP and the School replaced 
that certain agreement with another agreement, effective July 1, 2015, in April 2016. VEP shall provide the School 
with the services outlined on Schedule A of the agreement. In exchange for the services, the School shall pay to VEP 
the service fee outlined on Schedule A. 

NOTE 6 – COMMITMENTS 

Occupancy Lease 
The School is paying rent for space for classroom instruction and administration activity under a month-to-month 
lease. Monthly rental payments total $39,784. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, rent expense paid was 
$477,405. 

(8) 



     
    

  

 
  

          
             

          

Sisulu-Walker Charter School of Harlem, Inc. 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

Year Ending 
June 30, Amount 

2020 30,600 $ 
2021 12,750 

43,350 $ 

NOTE 7 – CONTINGENCY 

The School participates in a number of Federal and State programs. These programs require the School comply with 
certain requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements applicable to the program in which it 
participates. All funds expended in connection with government grants and contracts are subject to audit by 
government agencies. While the ultimate liability, if any, from such audits of government and contracts by 
government agencies is presently not determinable, it should not, in the opinion of the management, have a material 
effect on the financial position or results of operations. Accordingly, no provision for such liability that may result has 
been made in the accompanying financial statements. 

NOTE 8 – CONCENTRATIONS 

Financial instruments that potentially subject the School to a concentration of credit risk include cash accounts at 
major financial institutions which, at times may exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insured limit of 
$250,000 and Due from Government Agencies. Management believes that there is little risk in any losses and has not 
experienced any losses in such accounts. Management also believes that credit risk with respect to Due from 
Government Agencies is limited since the amounts are due from local and federal government programs. 

The School is dependent on various government agencies for funding, and is responsible for meeting the 
requirements of such agencies. If the school was to lose students or the related government funding, it could have a 
substantial effect on its ability to continue operations. 

NOTE 9 – LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES 

At June 30, 2019, the School has $1,027,808 of financial assets to meet needs for general expenditures consisting of 
cash of $912,566, due from government agencies of $111,761 and $3,481 of other receivables. None of the financial 
assets are subject to donor or other contractual restrictions. Accordingly all such funds are available to meet the cash 
needs of the organization in the next 12 months. 

In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the year, the School operates with a 
balanced budget and anticipates covering its general expenditures by collecting sufficient tuition and other revenues. 
The statement of cash flows identifies the sources and uses of the School’s cash and shows positive cash generated 
by operations of $191,464 and $117,032 for fiscal years ending June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. 

NOTE 10 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

The School evaluates events occurring after the date of the financial statements to consider whether or not the 
impact of such events needs to be reflected or disclosed in the financial statements. Such evaluation is performed 
through the date the financial statements are available for issuance, which was October 25, 2019, for these financial 
statements. 

NOTE 6 – COMMITMENTS (continued) 

Operating Lease 
The School entered into an operating lease agreement for equipment on August 22, 2017. The lease begins on 
September 1, 2017 and calls for monthly payments of $2,550 and expires on November 30, 2021. Future minimum 
rental payments under the terms of this lease are as follows: 

(9) 
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Sisulu-Walker Charter School of Harlem, Inc. 
Schedule of Functional Expenses 
For the year ended June 30, 2019 

(With Summarized Comparative Information For The Year Ended June 30, 2018) 

Regular Special Total Support 
Personnel Service Costs Education Education Programs Services 2019 2018 

Salaries 
Administrative Staff Personnel $ 185,419 $ 115,887 301,306 $ 162,241 $ 463,547 375,840 
Instructional Personnel 1,069,132 485,984 1,555,116 - 1,555,116 1,438,484 
Non-Instructional Personnel - - - 240,617 240,617 192,926 

Total Personnel Costs 1,254,551 601,871 1,856,422 402,858 2,259,280 2,007,250 

Fringe Benefits 200,301 96,094 296,395 25,903 322,298 277,787 
Payroll Taxes 124,132 59,552 183,684 16,053 199,737 150,435 
Retirement Benefits 30,599 14,680 45,279 3,957 49,236 40,362 

Total Personnel and Related Expenses 355,032 170,326 525,358 45,913 571,271 468,584 

Operating Expenses 
Consultants - Education (Note 5) 72,458 34,762 107,220 9,370 116,590 140,442 
Legal - - - - - 3,901 
Insurance 31,807 15,259 47,066 4,113 51,179 45,227 
Supplies and Materials 44,039 11,272 55,311 992 56,303 41,511 
Technology 17,409 8,352 25,761 2,251 28,012 25,013 
Occupancy 298,433 143,173 441,606 38,594 480,200 480,426 
Utilities 41,308 19,818 61,126 5,342 66,468 53,031 
Student Services 14,372 8,200 22,572 - 22,572 44,201 
Staff Development 7,903 3,628 11,531 944 12,475 8,208 
Marketing and Recruitment 33,019 10,547 43,566 1,744 45,310 31,415 
Accounting and Audit Fees - - - 137,000 137,000 127,209 
Office Expenses 35,136 16,857 51,993 4,544 56,537 51,069 
Maintenance and Repairs 26,916 12,913 39,829 3,481 43,310 24,640 
Equipment and Furnishings 2,145 1,029 3,174 277 3,451 6,351 
Depreciation 23,911 11,471 35,382 3,092 38,474 38,758 
Other Expenses 8,544 4,099 12,643 1,103 13,746 10,591 

Total Operating Expenses 657,400 301,380 958,780 212,847 1,171,627 1,131,993 

TOTAL EXPENSES $ 2,266,983 $ 1,073,577 $ 3,340,560 $ 661,618 $ 4,002,178 $ 3,607,827 

(11) 



     
     

   

           
          

     

      
        

        
        

586 Route 304, New City, NY 10956 
845-638-3113 | 845-638-4817 

445 Park Ave, 9th Fl, New York, NY 10022 
212-734-0395 | 212-734-0954 

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and On Compliance 

and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed 

in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

To the Board of Trustees of 
Sisulu-Walker Charter School of Harlem, Inc. 
New York, New York 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, 
the financial statements of Sisulu-Walker Charter School of Harlem, Inc. (a nonprofit organization) which comprise the statement 
of financial position as of June 30, 2019 and the related statements of activities, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 25, 2019. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Sisulu-Walker Charter School of Harlem, Inc.'s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of Sisulu-Walker Charter School of Harlem, Inc.’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the 
normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A 
material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility 
that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely 
basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material 
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not 
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may 
exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Sisulu-Walker Charter School of Harlem, Inc.'s financial statements are 
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement 
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, 
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

w w w . c p a t r u s t . c o m 



   
   

Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization’s internal control or on compliance. This report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization’s 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

New City, New York 

October 25, 2019 

w w w . c p a t r u s t . c o m 





     
         

 
   

       
 

 
                                     

     

  
       

                   

7) 

8) 

Federal Single Audit/ Uniform 
Guidance in 2 CFR Part 200, 
Subpart F 

N/A 

Corrective Action Plan N/A 

NEW YORK STATE EDUCATION DEPARTMENT - Reporting Requirements: 
Online Portal: https://nysed-cso-reports.myreviewroom.com/ 

Required Items: 
1) This transmital form (a copy of the Excel file containing the four schedules Does NOT need to be included); 
2) Audited Financial Report; 

And, if applicable: 
3) Management Letter and Response; 
4) Federal Single Audit/Uniform Guidance in 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F. 



    
   

    

 
     
     

   
 

     
  

    

 

 

   

 
       
     
 

       
           
   

 
 

                  

 

 

SISULU-WALKER CHARTER SCHOOL OF HARLEM 
Statement of Financial Position 

as of June 30, 2019 

ASSETS 2018-19 2017-18 

CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Grants and contracts receivable 
Accounts receivables 
Prepaid expenses 

Contributions and other receivables 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

$ 913,014 
111,761 

3,481 
-
-

1,028,256 

$ 728,120 
181,326 

-
-
-

909,446 

PROPERTY, BUILDING AND EQUIPMENT, net 81,135 113,040 

OTHER ASSETS 37,500 37,500 

TOTAL ASSETS 1,146,891 1,059,986 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued payroll and benefits 
Deferred Revenue 
Current maturities of long-term debt 
Short Term Debt - Bonds, Notes Payable 

Other   
LIABILITIES 

$ 77,220 
253,996 

-
-
-
-

331,216 

$ 73,157 
236,838 

-
-
-
-

309,995 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
Deferred Rent 
All other long-term debt and notes payable, net current maturities TOTAL LONG TERM 

LIABILITIES 

-
-
-

-
-
-

TOTAL LIABILITIES 331,216 309,995 

NET ASSETS 



 

  

  
 

       

Unrestricted 

Temporarily restricted 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 

815,675 

-

815,675 

749,991 

-

749,991 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 
NET ASSETS 1,146,891 1,059,986 

CK - Should be zero - -



    
  

    

    
   

   
   

   
   

       
   

     
     

     

 
 
 

 
   

   
 

  

     

   

 

SISULU-WALKER CHARTER SCHOOL OF HARLEM 

Statement of Activities 

as of June 30, 2019 

Unrestricted 

2018-19 
Temporarily 
Restricted Total 

2017-18 

Total 

REVENUE, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 
Public School District 

Resident Student Enrollment 
Students with disabilities 

Grants and Contracts 

State and local 
Federal - Title and IDEA 

Federal - Other 
Other 

NYC DoE Rental Assistance 

Food Service/Child Nutrition Program 

TOTAL REVENUE, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 

$ 3,281,673 

502,094 

-
-
-
-
-
-

3,783,767 

$ -
-

101,485 

152,103 

-
-
-
-

253,588 

$ 3,281,673 

502,094 

101,485 

152,103 

-
-
-
-

4,037,355 

$ 3,230,011 

277,430 

77,834 

155,592 

-
-
-
-

3,740,867 

EXPENSES 
Program Services 

Regular Education 

Special Education 

Other Programs 
Total Program Services 
Management and general 
Fundraising 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 

$ 2,266,983 

1,073,577 

-
3,340,560 
661,618 

4,002,178 

$ -
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 2,266,983 

1,073,577 

-
3,340,560 
661,618 

-
4,002,178 

$ 2,094,550 

957,364 

-
3,051,914 
555,913 

-
3,607,827 

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM SCHOOL OPERATIONS (218,411) 253,588 35,177 133,040 

SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 
Contributions 

Foundations 

Individuals 

Corporations 
Fundraising 
Interest income 

$ - $ 

-
29,660 

-
847 

-
-
-
-
-

$ -
-

29,660 
-

847 

$ -
-

36,209 
-

2,266 



 
       

    

   

       
   

    

Miscellaneous income 

Net assets released from restriction 
TOTAL SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 

-
253,588 
284,095 

-
(253,588) 
(253,588) 

-
-

30,507 

-
-

38,475 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 65,684 - 65,684 171,515 

NET ASSETS BEGINNING OF YEAR 

PRIOR YEAR/PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS 

749,991 

-
-
-

749,991 

-
578,476 

-

NET ASSETS END OF YEAR $ 815,675 $ - $ 815,675 $ 749,991 



    
   

    

    
       
       
 

     

 
   
 
 
 
 
 

     
 

 
 

     

    
   

     

    
       

     

       
       

       

SISULU-WALKER CHARTER SCHOOL OF HARLEM 
Statement of Cash Flows 

as of June 30, 2019 

2018-19 2017-18 

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Increase (decrease) in net assets 
Revenues from School Districts 
Accounts Receivable 
Due from School Districts 
Depreciation 
Grants Receivable 
Due from NYS 
Grant revenues 
Prepaid Expenses 
Accounts Payable 
Accrued Expenses 
Accrued Liabilities 
Contributions and fund-raising activities 
Miscellaneous sources 
Deferred Revenue 
Interest payments 
Other 
Other 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of equipment 
Other 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS - FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Principal payments on long-term debt 
Other 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
Cash at beginning of year 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 

$ 65,683 
(32,624) 
88,990 

-
38,479 

-
-
-
-

(12,144) 
42,486 

-
-
-
-
-

594 
-

$ 191,464 

(6,570) 
-

$ (6,570) 

-
-

$ -

$ 184,894 
728,120 

$ 913,014 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

171,515 
(10,263) 
(39,262) 

-
38,758 

-
-
-

39,784 
(22,079) 
17,043 

-
-
-

(78,934) 
-

470 
-

117,032 

(15,724) 
-

(15,724) 

-
-
-

101,308 
626,812 

728,120 



    
   
    

   
 

 
                 

   
 

 
     

       

   
 

     
           
                 
   

   
   

 
    

   
 

 

 

SISULU-WALKER CHARTER SCHOOL OF HARLEM 
Statement of Functional Expenses 

as of June 30, 2019 

2018-19 

No. of Regular
Positions Education 

Personnel Services Costs $ 
Administrative Staff Personnel 4.00 185,419 
Instructional Personnel 24.00 1,069,132 
Non-Instructional Personnel 10.00 -
Total Salaries and Staff 38.00 1,254,551 

Fringe Benefits & Payroll Taxes 324,433 
Retirement 30,599 
Management Company Fees -
Legal Service -
Accounting / Audit Services -
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting Services 72,458 
Building and Land Rent / Lease / Facility Finance Interes  298,433 
Repairs & Maintenance 26,916 
Insurance 31,807 
Utilities 41,308 
Supplies / Materials 44,039 
Equipment / Furnishings 2,145 
Staff Development 7,903 
Marketing / Recruitment 33,019 
Technology 17,409 
Food Service -
Student Services 14,372 
Office Expense 35,136 
Depreciation 23,911 

OTHER 8,544 

Program Services 

Special Other 
Education Education 

$ $ 
115,887 -
485,984 -

- -
601,871 -
155,646 -
14,680 -

- -
- -
- -

34,762 -
143,173 -
12,913 -
15,259 -
19,818 -
11,272 -
1,029 -
3,628 -

10,547 -
8,352 -

- -
8,200 -

16,857 -
11,471 -

4,099 -

$ 
Total 

301,306 
1,555,116 

-
1,856,422 
480,079 
45,279 

-
-
-

107,220 
441,606 
39,829 
47,066 
61,126 
55,311 
3,174 

11,531 
43,566 
25,761 

-
22,572 
51,993 
35,382 
12,643 

Supporting Services 

Management 
Fund-raising and General 

$ $ $ 
- 162,241 
- -
- 240,617 
- 402,858 
- 41,956 
- 3,957 
- -
- -
- 137,000 
- 9,370 
- 38,594 
- 3,481 
- 4,113 
- 5,342 
- 992 
- 277 
- 944 
- 1,744 
- 2,251 
- -
- -
- 4,544 
- 3,092 
- 1,103 

Total 

162,241 
-

240,617 
402,858 
41,956 
3,957 

-
-

137,000 
9,370 

38,594 
3,481 
4,113 
5,342 
992 
277 
944 

1,744 
2,251 

-
-

4,544 
3,092 
1,103 

Total Expenses $ 2,266,983 $ 1,073,577 $ - $ 3,340,560 $ - $ 661,618 $ 661,618 



   

2017-18

$ 

$ 

Total 

463,547 
1,555,116 
240,617 

2,259,280 
522,035 
49,236 

-
-

137,000 
116,590 
480,200 
43,310 
51,179 
66,468 
56,303 
3,451 

12,475 
45,310 
28,012 

-
22,572 
56,537 
38,474 
13,746 

4,002,178 

$ 

$ 

375,840 
1,438,484 
192,926 

2,007,250 
428,222 
40,362 

-
3,901 

127,209 
140,442 
480,426 
24,640 
45,227 
53,031 
41,511 
6,351 
8,208 

31,415 
25,013 

-
44,201 
51,069 
38,758 
10,591 

3,607,827 







      
          

Charter Funding Alphabetical By NYS School District 
* (Sum of Charter School Basic Tuition and Supplemental Basic Tuition) 
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ANNUAL BUDGET & QUARTERLY REPORT TEMPLATE 

Sisulu-Walker Charter School of Harlem 

SCHOOL 
Name: Sisulu-Walker Charter School of Harlem 

CONTACT INFORMATION 
Contact Name: Shamik Mitchell 
Contact Title: Director of Operations 
Contact Email:  
Contact Phone:  

REPORT PERIOD 
Current Academic Year: 2019-20 
Prior Academic Year: 2018-19 
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PRIOR YEAR ANNUAL BUDGET 
2018-19 QUARTER 1 QUARTER 2  QUARTER 3 QUAR  

PRIMARY/OTHER DISTRICT NAME(S) 
Actual 

Enrollment 

Original 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Revised 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Original 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Revised 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Original 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Revised 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Original 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 
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8 9 10 11 12 

QUARTER 1 

Revised Actual 
0 0 
0 0 

QUARTER 1 QUARTER 2 QUARTER 3 QUARTER 4 

Revised 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 

TER 4 

D' Column(s) 
s for the 

TER 4 

ACTUAL QUARTERLY 
TOTAL DISTRICTS/ENROLLMENT 

QUARTER 2 

Actual 
0 
0 

QUARTER 3 QUARTER 4 

Actual Actual 
0 0 
0 0 

ACTUAL ENROLLMENT BY QUARTER 
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     TER 4 

Revised 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

ACTUAL ENROLLMENT BY QUARTER 
QUARTER 1 QUARTER 2 QUARTER 3 QUARTER 4 

Actual 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 
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SISULU-WALKER CHARTER SCHOOL OF HARLEM 
ALANCE SHEET 

2019-20 

Prior Year Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

2018-19 As of 9/30 As of 12/31 As of 3/31 As of 6/30 
ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Grants and contracts receivable 
Accounts receivables 
Prepaid Expenses 

Contributions and other receivables 

-
-
-
-
-

- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS - - - - -

-PROPERTY, BUILDING AND EQUIPMENT, net - - - -

-OTHER ASSETS - - - -

TOTAL ASSETS - - - - -

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued payroll and benefits 
Deferred Revenue 
Current maturities of long-term debt 
Short Term Debt - Bonds, Notes Payable 

Other 

-
-
-
-
-
-

- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES - - - - -

-

TOTAL LIABILITIES - - - - -

LONG-TERM DEBT and NOTES PAYABLE, net current maturities - - - -

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 

Temporarily restricted 

-
-

- - - -
- - - -

TOTAL NET ASSETS - - - - -
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    TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS - - - - -
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Annual Report Requirement 
for SUNY Authorized Charter Schools 

SISULU-WALKER CHARTER SCHOOL OF HARLEM 

2019-20 

Administrative $0.00expenditures per pupil: 

Per NYS Statute Administrative expenditures per pupil: the sum of all 
general administration salaries and other general 
administration expenditures divided by the total 
number of enrolled students. Employee benefit 
costs or expenditures should not be reported here. 

*NOTE: THIS TAB ONLY NEEDS TO BE COMPLETED FOR Q4 
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______________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

FOR INSTITUTE USE ONLY 

FILING FOR SCHOOL 
YEAR: __________________ 

DATE RECEIVED: _______ 

DISCLOSURE OF FINANCIAL INTEREST 
BY A NOT-FOR-PROFIT CHARTER SCHOOL 
EDUCATION CORPORATION TRUSTEE 

1. Name of education corporation:___________________________________________________ Sisulu Walker Char er School of Harlem 

Erika L  Ewing 2. Trustee’s name (print):___________________________________________________________ 

3. Position(s) on board, if any: (e.g., chair, treasurer, committee chair, etc.):__________________ 

Academic Commi ee 

 
4. Home address:____ ___________________________________ 

5. Business Address:_____ ____________________________________________________ 

6. Daytime phone:______ _______________________________________________ 

7. E-mail:____ ________________________________________________ 

X8. Is Trustee an employee of the education corporation? ____Yes. ____No. If you checked yes, 

please provide a description of the position you hold, your salary and your start date. 

9. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or any of 

your immediate family members have held or engaged in with the education corporation during 

the prior school year. If there has been no such financial interest or transaction, please write 
“None.” Please note that if you answered yes to Question 8, you need not disclose again your 

employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) 
Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps Taken to Avoid a 
Conflict of Interest, (e.g., 
did not vote, did not 

participate in discussion) 

Identity of Person Holding 
Interest or Engaging in 

Transaction (e.g., you and/or 
immediate family member 

(name)) 

NONE 

P l  e  a  s  e  w  

NONE 

r  i  t  e  “  N  o  n  e  ”  i  f  a  p  p  l  i  c  a  

NONE 

b  l  e  .  D  o  n  o  t  l  e  a  v  e  t  

NONE 

h  i  s  s  p  a  c  e  b  l  a  nk .  
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 _______________________________________________ _____________________ 

10. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership, committee 

proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business or real estate trust, 

non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people doing business with the 

education corporation and in which such entity, during the preceding school year (July 1 – June 
30), you and/or your immediate family member(s) had a financial interest or other relationship.  

If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an organization formally partnered with 

the education corporation that is doing business with the education corporation through a 

management or services agreement, you need not list every transaction between such entity 

and the education corporation that is pursuant to such agreement; rather, please identify only 

the name of the entity, your position in the entity as well as the relationship between such 

entity and the education corporation.  If there was no financial interest, please write “None.” 

Entity 
Conducting 
Business with 
the Education 
Corporation 

Nature of 
Business 
Conducted 

Approximate 
Value of the 
Business 
Conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or 
Immediate Family Holding an 

Interest in the Entity 
Conducting Business with the 
Education Corporation and 
the Nature of the Interest 

Steps Taken to 
Avoid Conflict 
of Interest 

None 

P l e a s e  
None 

w r i t e  “ N o n e ”  i
None 

f  a p p l i c a b l e .  D
None 

o  n o t  l e a v e  t h i s  s p a c e  b l a
None 

n k .  

July 8  2019 

Signature Date 

Form Revised November 16, 2015 
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Entry 10 Enrollment and Retention of Special 
Populations 
Last updated: 07/20/2019 

Instructions for Reporting Enrollment and Retention Strategies 

Describe the efforts the charter school has made in 2018 19 toward meeting targets to attract and retain 

enrollment of students with disabilities, English language learners/Multilingual learners, and students who 

are economically disadvantaged. In addition, describe the school’s plans for meeting or making progress 

toward meeting its enrollment and retention targets in 2019 20. 

SISULU-WALKER CHARTER SCHOOL OF HARLEMSection Heading 

Recruitment/Attraction Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

Describe Recruitment Efforts in 2018 19 Describe Recruitment Plans in 2019 20 

During the 2018 2019 school year, Sisulu
Walker Charter School sent advertisement 
packets to
Day care centers in districts 3, 4, and 5 that
provide services to students with disabilities
and who 
have a large population of English Language
Learners; these districts have large free and
reduced lunch populations. Additionally,
Sisulu Walker Charter School set up
information tables at local community
centers such as the Dunleavy Milbank Center
that have a high population of students
eligible for free and reduced lunch. We also
increased our advertising using a
combination of local, targeted mobile
advertisements, and subway billboards. 

The packets that were sent to the day care
centers included information regarding the
school’s 
lottery and academic program as well as a
date for our open house. At our annual open
house, 
parents were given information about Sisulu
Walker Charter School’s general education
program as well as an overview of the
support services that are provided toEconom students with ically 

During the 2019 2020 school year, Sisulu
Walker Charter School will continue to send 
advertisement packets to day care centers in
districts 3, 4, and 5 that provide services to
students with disabilities and who 
have a large population of English Language
Learners; these districts have large free and
reduced lunch populations. Additionally,
Sisulu Walker Charter School will continue to 
set up information tables at local community
centers such as the Dunleavy Milbank Center
that have a high population of students
eligible for free and reduced lunch. We will
continue to increase our advertising using a
combination of local, targeted mobile
advertisements, and subway billboards. 

The packets that will be sent to the day care
centers will include information regarding the
school’s 
lottery and academic program as well as a
date for our open house. At our annual open
house, 
parents will be given information about
Sisulu Walker Charter School’s general
education program as well as an overview of
the support services that are provided to
students with disabilities and English
Language Learners. Our school has a full

1 / 8 



	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

Disadva disabilities and English Language Learners.
ntaged Our school has a full time Title I Coordinator 

and Special Education Coordinator. We
increased the number of Integrated Co
Teaching classrooms we have from 7 to 8,
making every classroom an ICT classroom.
Each Integrated Co Teaching classroom had
one special education teacher and one
general education teacher. Additionally, all
classrooms had two instructional staff 
members to ensure that at risk students 
received additional support. All intervention
teachers worked closely with students and
teachers to ensure that the needs of each 
population are met. 

In addition, we will continue to increase our 
efforts to attract students with disabilities, 
English Language Learners, and students
who are eligible for free and reduced priced
lunch by hosting additional open houses,
hosting information sessions at daycare
centers, publications, and again advertising
on subway billboards and mobile applications
while increasing the duration and widening
the reach of the advertisements. We have 
also revamped our website and will reboot
our outreach via multiple social media
platforms. 

During the 2018 2019 school year, Sisulu
Walker Charter School sent advertisement 
packets to
Day care centers in districts 3, 4, and 5 that
provide services to students with disabilities
and who 
have a large population of English Language
Learners; these districts have large free and
reduced lunch populations. Additionally,
Sisulu Walker Charter School set up
information tables at local community
centers such as the Dunleavy Milbank Center
that have a high population of students
eligible for free and reduced lunch. We also
increased our advertising using a
combination of local, targeted mobile
advertisements, and subway billboards. 

The packets that were sent to the day care
centers included information regarding the
school’s 
lottery and academic program as well as a
date for our open house. At our annual open 

2 / 8 

time Title I Coordinator and Special
Education Coordinator. We increased the 
number of Integrated Co Teaching
classrooms we have from 7 to 8, making
every classroom an ICT classroom. Each
Integrated Co Teaching classroom have one
special education teacher and one general
education teacher. Additionally, all
classrooms have two instructional staff 
members to ensure that at risk students 
received additional support. All intervention
teachers work closely with students and
teachers to ensure that the needs of each 
population are met. 

In addition, we will continue to increase our 
efforts to attract students with disabilities, 
English Language Learners, and students
who are eligible for free and reduced priced
lunch by hosting additional open houses,
hosting information sessions at daycare
centers, publications, and again advertising
on subway billboards and mobile applications
while increasing the duration and widening
the reach of the advertisements. We have 
also revamped our website and will reboot
our outreach via multiple social media
platforms. 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

house, 
parents were given information about Sisulu

English Walker Charter School’s general education
Langua program as well as an overview of the
ge support services that are provided to
Learner students with 
s/Multili disabilities and English Language Learners.
ngual Our school has a full time Title I Coordinator 
Learner and Special Education Coordinator. We
s increased the number of Integrated Co

Teaching classrooms we have from 7 to 8,
making every classroom an ICT classroom.
Each Integrated Co Teaching classroom had
one special education teacher and one
general education teacher. Additionally, all
classrooms had two instructional staff 
members to ensure that at risk students 
received additional support. All intervention
teachers worked closely with students and
teachers to ensure that the needs of each 
population are met. 

In addition, we will continue to increase our 
efforts to attract students with disabilities, 
English Language Learners, and students
who are eligible for free and reduced priced
lunch by hosting additional open houses,
hosting information sessions at daycare
centers, publications, and again advertising
on subway billboards and mobile applications
while increasing the duration and widening
the reach of the advertisements. We have 
also revamped our website and will reboot
our outreach via multiple social media
platforms. 

During the 2018 2019 school year, Sisulu
Walker Charter School sent advertisement 
packets to
Day care centers in districts 3, 4, and 5 that
provide services to students with disabilities
and who 
have a large population of English Language
Learners; these districts have large free and
reduced lunch populations. Additionally,
Sisulu Walker Charter School set up
information tables at local community
centers such as the Dunleavy Milbank Center
that have a high population of students
eligible for free and reduced lunch. We also
increased our advertising using a
combination of local, targeted mobile
advertisements, and subway billboards. 
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In addition, we will continue to increase our 
efforts to attract students with disabilities, 
English Language Learners, and students
who are eligible for free and reduced priced
lunch by hosting additional open houses,
hosting information sessions at daycare
centers, publications, and again advertising
on subway billboards and mobile applications
while increasing the duration and widening
the reach of the advertisements. We have 
also revamped our website and will reboot
our outreach via multiple social media
platforms. 



	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	

The packets that were sent to the day care
centers included information regarding the
school’s 
lottery and academic program as well as a
date for our open house. At our annual open
house, 
parents were given information about Sisulu
Walker Charter School’s general education
program as well as an overview of the

Student support services that are provided to
s with students with 

Disabilit disabilities and English Language Learners.
ies Our school has a full time Title I Coordinator 

and Special Education Coordinator. We
increased the number of Integrated Co
Teaching classrooms we have from 7 to 8,
making every classroom an ICT classroom.
Each Integrated Co Teaching classroom had
one special education teacher and one
general education teacher. Additionally, all
classrooms had two instructional staff 
members to ensure that at risk students 
received additional support. All intervention
teachers worked closely with students and
teachers to ensure that the needs of each 
population are met. 

In addition, we will continue to increase our 
efforts to attract students with disabilities, 
English Language Learners, and students
who are eligible for free and reduced priced
lunch by hosting additional open houses,
hosting information sessions at daycare
centers, publications, and again advertising
on subway billboards and mobile applications
while increasing the duration and widening
the reach of the advertisements. We have 
also revamped our website and will reboot
our outreach via multiple social media
platforms. 

In addition, we will continue to increase our 
efforts to attract students with disabilities, 
English Language Learners, and students
who are eligible for free and reduced priced
lunch by hosting additional open houses,
hosting information sessions at daycare
centers, publications, and again advertising
on subway billboards and mobile applications
while increasing the duration and widening
the reach of the advertisements. We have 
also revamped our website and will reboot
our outreach via multiple social media
platforms. 

Retention Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

Describe Retention Efforts in 2018 19 Describe Retention Plans in 2019 20 

During the 2018 2019 school year, Sisulu
Walker Charter School sent advertisement 
packets to
Day care centers in districts 3, 4, and 5 that
provide services to students with disabilities
and who 
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have a large population of English Language
Learners; these districts have large free and
reduced lunch populations. Additionally,
Sisulu Walker Charter School set up
information tables at local community
centers such as the Dunleavy Milbank Center
that have a high population of students
eligible for free and reduced lunch. We also
increased our advertising using a
combination of local, targeted mobile
advertisements, and subway billboards. 

The packets that were sent to the day care
centers included information regarding the
school’s 
lottery and academic program as well as a
date for our open house. At our annual open
house, 
parents were given information about Sisulu
Walker Charter School’s general education
program as well as an overview of the

Econom support services that are provided to
ically students with 
Disadva disabilities and English Language Learners.
ntaged Our school has a full time Title I Coordinator 

and Special Education Coordinator. We
increased the number of Integrated Co
Teaching classrooms we have from 7 to 8,
making every classroom an ICT classroom.
Each Integrated Co Teaching classroom had
one special education teacher and one
general education teacher. Additionally, all
classrooms had two instructional staff 
members to ensure that at risk students 
received additional support. All intervention
teachers worked closely with students and
teachers to ensure that the needs of each 
population are met. 

In addition, we will continue to increase our 
efforts to attract students with disabilities, 
English Language Learners, and students
who are eligible for free and reduced priced
lunch by hosting additional open houses,
hosting information sessions at daycare
centers, publications, and again advertising
on subway billboards and mobile applications
while increasing the duration and widening
the reach of the advertisements. We have 
also revamped our website and will reboot
our outreach via multiple social media
platforms. 

In addition, we will continue to increase our 
efforts to attract students with disabilities, 
English Language Learners, and students
who are eligible for free and reduced priced
lunch by hosting additional open houses,
hosting information sessions at daycare
centers, publications, and again advertising
on subway billboards and mobile applications
while increasing the duration and widening
the reach of the advertisements. We have 
also revamped our website and will reboot
our outreach via multiple social media
platforms. 

5 / 8 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

During the 2018 2019 school year, Sisulu
Walker Charter School sent advertisement 
packets to
Day care centers in districts 3, 4, and 5 that
provide services to students with disabilities
and who 
have a large population of English Language
Learners; these districts have large free and
reduced lunch populations. Additionally,
Sisulu Walker Charter School set up
information tables at local community
centers such as the Dunleavy Milbank Center
that have a high population of students
eligible for free and reduced lunch. We also
increased our advertising using a
combination of local, targeted mobile
advertisements, and subway billboards. 

The packets that were sent to the day care
centers included information regarding the
school’s 
lottery and academic program as well as a
date for our open house. At our annual open
house, 
parents were given information about Sisulu

English Walker Charter School’s general education
Langua program as well as an overview of thege support services that are provided toLearner students with s/Multili disabilities and English Language Learners.ngual Our school has a full time Title I Coordinator Learner and Special Education Coordinator. Wes increased the number of Integrated Co

Teaching classrooms we have from 7 to 8,
making every classroom an ICT classroom.
Each Integrated Co Teaching classroom had
one special education teacher and one
general education teacher. Additionally, all
classrooms had two instructional staff 
members to ensure that at risk students 
received additional support. All intervention
teachers worked closely with students and
teachers to ensure that the needs of each 
population are met. 

In addition, we will continue to increase our 
efforts to attract students with disabilities, 
English Language Learners, and students
who are eligible for free and reduced priced
lunch by hosting additional open houses,
hosting information sessions at daycare
centers, publications, and again advertising
on subway billboards and mobile applications 

In addition, we will continue to increase our 
efforts to attract students with disabilities, 
English Language Learners, and students
who are eligible for free and reduced priced
lunch by hosting additional open houses,
hosting information sessions at daycare
centers, publications, and again advertising
on subway billboards and mobile applications
while increasing the duration and widening
the reach of the advertisements. We have 
also revamped our website and will reboot
our outreach via multiple social media
platforms. 
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while increasing the duration and widening
the reach of the advertisements. We have 
also revamped our website and will reboot
our outreach via multiple social media
platforms. 

During the 2018 2019 school year, Sisulu
Walker Charter School sent advertisement 
packets to
Day care centers in districts 3, 4, and 5 that
provide services to students with disabilities
and who 
have a large population of English Language
Learners; these districts have large free and
reduced lunch populations. Additionally,
Sisulu Walker Charter School set up
information tables at local community
centers such as the Dunleavy Milbank Center
that have a high population of students
eligible for free and reduced lunch. We also
increased our advertising using a
combination of local, targeted mobile
advertisements, and subway billboards. 

The packets that were sent to the day care
centers included information regarding the
school’s 
lottery and academic program as well as a
date for our open house. At our annual open
house, 
parents were given information about Sisulu
Walker Charter School’s general education
program as well as an overview of the

Student support services that are provided to
s with students with 
Disabilit disabilities and English Language Learners.
ies Our school has a full time Title I Coordinator 

and Special Education Coordinator. We
increased the number of Integrated Co
Teaching classrooms we have from 7 to 8,
making every classroom an ICT classroom.
Each Integrated Co Teaching classroom had
one special education teacher and one
general education teacher. Additionally, all
classrooms had two instructional staff 
members to ensure that at risk students 
received additional support. All intervention
teachers worked closely with students and
teachers to ensure that the needs of each 
population are met. 

In addition, we will continue to increase our 
efforts to attract students with disabilities, 

In addition, we will continue to increase our 
efforts to attract students with disabilities, 
English Language Learners, and students
who are eligible for free and reduced priced
lunch by hosting additional open houses,
hosting information sessions at daycare
centers, publications, and again advertising
on subway billboards and mobile applications
while increasing the duration and widening
the reach of the advertisements. We have 
also revamped our website and will reboot
our outreach via multiple social media
platforms. 
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English Language Learners, and students
who are eligible for free and reduced priced
lunch by hosting additional open houses,
hosting information sessions at daycare
centers, publications, and again advertising
on subway billboards and mobile applications
while increasing the duration and widening
the reach of the advertisements. We have 
also revamped our website and will reboot
our outreach via multiple social media
platforms. 
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Entry 11 Classroom Teacher and Administrator 

Attrition 
Last updated: 07/20/2019 

Report changes in teacher and administrator staffing. 

Instructions for completing the Classroom Teacher and Administrator Attrition Tables 

Charter schools must complete the tables titled 2018-2019 Classroom Teacher and 

Administrator Attrition to report changes in teacher and administrator staffing 

during the 2018-2019 school year. Please provide the full time equivalent (FTE) of 

staff on June 30, 2018; the FTE for any departed staff from July 1, 2018 through June 

30, 2019; the FTE for added staff from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019; and the 

FTE of staff added in newly created positions from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 

using the tables provided. 

1. Classroom Teacher Attrition Table 

FTE Classroom FTE Classroom FTE Classroom 
Teachers on 
6/30/18 

Teachers 
Departed 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

Teachers Filling
Vacant Positions 
7/1/18  6/30/19 

16 3 2 

2. Administrator Position Attrition Table 

FTE 
Administrative 
Positions on 
6/30/18 

2 

FTE 
Administrators 
Departed 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

0 

FTE 
Administrators 
Filling Vacant
Positions 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

0 

FTE Classroom FTE of 
Teachers Added Classroom 
in New Positions Teachers on 
7/1/18 6/30/19 6/3019 

1 16 

FTE FTE 
Administrators Administrative 
Added in New Positions on 
Positions 7/1/18

6/30/19 
6/30/19 

1 3 
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3. Tell your school's story 

Charter schools may provide additional information in this section of the Annual 
Report about their respective teacher and administrator attrition rates as some 

teacher or administrator departures do not reflect advancement or movement within 

the charter school networks. Schools may provide additional detail to reflect a 

teacher’s advancement up the ladder to a leadership position within the network or 

an administrator’s movement to lead a new network charter school. 

The teacher and administrator attrition rates continue to remain low. Only 3 of the school's 19 classroom 

teachers separated from the school during the 2018 19 academic year. During this same time period, no 

administrator separated from the school. 

4. Charter schools must ensure that all prospective employees receive clearance 

through the NYSED Office of School Personnel Review and Accountability (OSPRA) 

prior to employment. After an employee has been cleared, schools are required to 

maintain proof of such clearance in the file of each employee. For the safety of all 
students, charter schools must take immediate steps to terminate the employment of 

individuals who have been denied clearance. Once the employees have been 

terminated, the school must terminate the request for clearance in the TEACH 

system. 

Have all employees have been cleared through the NYSED TEACH system? 

Yes 

5. For perspective or current employees whose clearance has been denied, have you 

terminated their employment and removed them from the TEACH system? 

Not Applicable 

Thank you 
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